BIRO KLASIFIKASI INDONESIA $\,\mathscr{G}\,$

Regulations for Ventilation Systems on Board Seagoing Ships



EDITION 2004

The following Regulations come into force on 1st February 2004

Reproduction in whole or in part by any means, is subject to the permission in writing by Biro Klasifikasi Indonesia Head Office

Published by : Biro Klasifikasi Indonesia

P.T. (Persero) Biro Klasifikasi Indonesia

Head Office : Jl. Yos Sudarso No. 38-39-40 Tanjung Priok - Jakarta 14320 PO.Box : 1010/JKU Indonesia Telephone : +62 (021) 497021, 4300993, 4301017, 4301703, 4353291, 4353292 Telefax : +62 (021) 492509, 496175, 4371813 e-mail: bki@klasifikasiindonesia.com Website: http:// www.klasifikasiindonesia.com

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

Chairman Commissioners

Secretary

: Pieter F.L. Maspaitella, MBA : Drs. Sudjanadi, SE, MBA Drs. F.X. Yuwono P. Setoto, M.Sc : Suryanto, SH

BOARD OF MANAGING DIRECTORS

President Director Technical Director Business Director Finance & Personnel Director

SURVEY DIVISION

Reporting & Certification Sect. Monitoring & Register Sect. Acquisition Sect.

HULL & MATERIAL DIVISION

Hull Sect. Material & Welding Sect.

MACHINERY & ELECTRICAL DIVISION

Machinery Sect. Electrical Sect. : Iskandar Bugandarsyah Ilahude

: Ir. Muchtar Ali

: Darlion Djabar, AMK-C, MM

: Drs. Donny S. Purba

: Ir. Haryanto

: Ir. Muardy Kobandaha

: Ir. Purnomohadi

- : Soesetyo Adie, AMK-B, MM
- : Ir. Onot Subagyo
- : Ir. Soedjarwoko
- : Ir. Imam Darmadi
- : Ir. L. Manupassa
- : Ir. Agus Wijaya
- : Ir. Agus Salim

STATUTORY DIVISION	: Ir. Fathorrachman Said, M.Sc
Load Line & Cargo Gear Sect.	: Ir. Bambang Tri Suharto
SOLAS, MARPOL & ISM Sect.	: Ir. Heintje Angganois
QUALITY ASSURANCE DEPARTMENT	: Ir. Saifuddin Wijaya, MBA
PLANNING DEPARTMENT	: Hendra Bawono, MBA
Programming & Budgeting Sect.	: Taufik Hidayat, SE, MM
Information System Sect.	: Ir. Azril Bayma
RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT	: Ir. Joeliantoro
INTERNAL CONTROL DEPARTMENT	: Ir. I.N.G Arimbawa
FINANCE DIVISION	: Drs. Sukiyo
Finance Adm. Sect.	: Dra. Yayuk Mahanani, MM
Accounting Sect.	: R. Sudaryo, SE
PERSONNEL & GENERAL AFFAIRS DIVISION	: Su'ad Syuhada, SE, MM
Administration & General Affairs Sect.	: Asep Sutrisna S, SH, MM
Personnel & Training Sect.	: Herry Sudrajat, SH, MM
SUPERVISION & CONSULTATION DIVISION	: -
Production & Operational Sect.	: Ir. Agung Prihanto
Marketing Sect.	: Ir. Jeffrey B. Massie

ŀ

BKI BRANCH OFFICES

AMBON

AUDUN	
Address	: Jl. Raya Pelabuhan, Kompleks
	Pelabuhan, Ambon 97216
Telephone	: (0911) 361105
Telefax	: (0911) 361105
E-mail	: bkiab@klasifikasiindonesia.com
Head	: Ir. Pieter Petrus Paulus

BALIKPAPAN

Address	: Jl. MT. Haryono No. 3
	Ring Road - Balikpapan 76111
Telephone	: (0542) 876637, 876641
	876642, 876643
Telefax	: (0542) 876639, 876645
E-mail	: bkibp@klasifikasiindonesia.com
Head	: Ir. Priyo Santosa
Deputies	: Ir. Arsalnan Latief
	Ir. A. Bachrun Saad

BANJARMASIN

Address	: Jl. Skip Lama No. 19
	Banjarmasin 70112
Telephone	: (0511) 50175, 58311
Telefax	: (0511) 50175
E-mail	: bkibj@klasifikasiindonesia.com
Head	: Ir. Ridwan Djajanto

BATAM

Address	: Jl. Gajah Mada, Komplek Pondok
	Indah Mc. Dermot Blok A No. 1
	Batam 29421
Telephone	: (0778) 322178, 322083
Telefax	: (0778) 322118
E-mail	: bkibt@klasifikasiindonesia.com
Head	: Ir. Darwis Ali

BELAWAN

Address	: Jl. Sulawesi II - Belawan,
	Medan 20413
Telephone	: (061) 6941025
Telefax	: (061) 6941276
E-mail	: bkibn@klasifikasiindonesia.com
Head	: Ir. Zil Zal HM.

BITUNG

: Jl. DS. Sumolang No. 1
Depan Pos IV Pelabuhan,
Bitung 95522
: (0438) 21129
: (0438) 21282
: bkibt@klasifikasiindonesia.com
: Ir. Acep Subarkah

CIGADING

Address	: Jl. Gerem Raya No. 01
	Pulomerak KM. 5, Cilegon 42438
Telephone	: (0254) 571007, 573955
Telefax	: (0254) 571007
E-mail	: bkicg@klasifikasiindonesia.com
Head	: Ir. Totok Achmad

CIREBON

Address	: Jl. Tuparev KM.3
	Cirebon 45153
Telephone	: (0231) 205266
Telefax	: (0231) 205266
E-mail	: bkicn@klasifikasiindonesia.com
Head	: Ir. Alfonsus Susilarso, AMK-B

DUMAI

Address	: Jl. Sungai Rokan No. 96
	Dumai 28814
Telephone	: (0765) 32574
Telefax	: (0765) 31364
E-mail	: bkidm@klasifikasiindonesia.com
Head	: Ir. Yunasri Zainal

KENDARI

Address	: Jl. Bunga Matahari No. 64
	Kemaraya - Kendari 93121
Telephone	: (0401) 321622
Telefax	: (0401) 322847
E-mail	: bkikd@klasifikasiindonesia.com
Head	: Ir. Rachmady S.

۷

MAKASSAR

Address	: Jl. Sungai Cerekang No. 28
	Makassar 90115
Telephone	: (0411) 311993, 315460
Telefax	: (0411) 315460
E-mail	: bkims@klasifikasiindonesia.com
Head	: Ir. Pardy Abbas

PADANG

Head	: Ir. Bambang Noeljanto
E-mail	: bkipd@klasifikasiindonesia.com
Telefax	: (0751) 61553
Telephone	: (0751) 61553, 765436
	Padang 25216
Address	: Jl. St. Syahrir No. 208

PALEMBANG

Jl. Perintis Kemerdekaan 5 Ilir,
Palembang 30115
: (0711) 713171, 713172, 713680
(0711) 713173
bkipb@klasifikasiindonesia.com
Ir. Siswanto

PONTIANAK

PUNIIANAK		
Address	: Jl. Gusti Hamzah No. 211	
	Pontianak 78116	
Telephone	: (0561) 739579, 743107	
Telefax	: (0561) 739579	
E-mail	: bkipk@klasifikasiindonesia.com	
Head	: Ir. Saiful Bachri	

SEMARANG

Address	: Jl. M. Pardi No. 5, Pelabuhan
	Tanjung Emas, Semarang 50129
Telephone	: (024) 3543917, 3545805, 3567260
Telefax	: (024) 3543917
E-mail	: bkism@klasifikasiindonesia.com
Head	: Ir. Yansen Miri

SINGAPORE

Address	:	111 North Bridge Road # 08-07 Peninsula Plaza Singapore 179098
Telephone	:	(65) 68830634 - 43 - 51
Telefax	:	(65) 63393631
E-mail	:	bki _sb@ pacific.net.sg
Head	:	Ir. Setudju Dangkeng
SORONG		
Address	:	Jl. Jend. Sudirman No. 140 Sorong 98414

		Sorong 98414
Telephone	:	(0951) 322600
Telefax	:	(0951) 323870
E-mail	:	bkisr@klasifikasiindonesia.com
Head	:	Ir. Syahruddin Nur

SURABAYA

Address	:	Jl. Kalianget No. 14
		Surabaya 60165
Telephone	:	(031) 3295448, 3295449,
		3295450, 3295451
Telefax	:	(031) 3294520
E-mail	:	bkisb@klasifikasiindonesia.com
Head	:	Ir. M. Nasrun Djafar
Deputies	:	Ir. Nurdin Gading
		Ir. Mohamad Cholil

TANJUNG PRIOK

Address	:	Jl. Yos Sudarso 38-39-40
		Tanjung Priok, Jakarta 14320
Telephone	:	(021) 490990, 4301701, 4371488,
		43910583, 4300993,
		4301017, 4301703
Telefax	:	(021) 4301702, 497020
E-mail	:	bkitp@klasifikasiindonesia.com
Head	:	Radjin Sitorus
Deputy	:	Ir. Umar Faisal

OFFICES OF FOREIGN CLASSIFICATION SOCIETIES CARRYING OUT SURVEY ON BEHALF OF BIRO KLASIFIKASI INDONESIA

1. AMERICAN BUREAU OF SHIPPING 5. GERMANISCHER LLOYD (GL) (ABS)

Head Office	: ABS PLAZA
	16855 NORTHCHASE DRIVE
	HOUSTON, TX 77060 USA
Telephone	: (1) (281) 877-5800
Telefax	: (1) (281) 877-5803
Telex	: 6737929 ABS HQ
E-mail	: abs-worldhq@eagle.org : www.eagle.org
Web site	: www.eagle.org

2. BUREAU VERITAS (BV)

Head Office	: 17 BIS, PLACE DES REFLETS,
	LA DEFENCE 2
	ADR. POST. CEDEX 44
	92077 PARIS LA DEFENCE
	92400 COURBEVOIE, FRANCE
Telephone	: (33) (1) 4291-5291
Telefax	: (33) (1) 4291-5447
Telex	: 615370 F BV ADM
	SHIPS IN SERVICE
	MANAGEMENT
	615368 F BV SMS
E-mail	: info@bureauveritas.com
Web site	: www.bureauveritas.com

CHINA CLASSIFICATION SOCIETY 3. (CCS)

Head Office	: 40 DONG HUANG CHENG
	GEN NAN JIE,
	BEIJING - 100006
	PEOPLE'S REPUBLIC OF
	CHINA
Telephone	: (86) (010) 65136633, 65136787
Telefax	: (86) (010) 65130188 : 210407 CCSBJ CN
Telex	: 210407 CCSBJ CN
Cable	: CHINAREG
Web site	: www.ccs.org.cw
	-

4. DET NORSKE VERITAS (DnV)

VERITASVEIEN 1, N-1322
HOVIK, NORWAY
300,1322 HOVIC, NORWAY
: (47) 6757 9900
: (47) 6757 9911
: 76 192 VERIT N
VERITAS OSLO
www.dnv.no

Head Office	VORSETZEN 32. D-20459 HAMBURG	
Talanhana		
Telephone	: (49)(0)40-36149-0	
Telefax	: (49) (0) 40-36149 - 200	
Telex	: 2 12828 glhh d	
Cable	: klassenlloyd hamburg	
E-mail	: headoffice@germanlloyd.org	
Web site	: www.germanlloyd.org	

6. HELLENIC REGISTER OF SHIPPING (HR)

Head Office	: 23 AKTI MIAOULI, 185		
	35 PIRAEUS, GREECE		
Telephone	: (30) (1) 4221900-909		
Telefax	: (30)(1)4221913/4221914		
Telex	: 211564/241149 HRS GR		
Cable	: HELREGSHIP-PIRAEUS		
E-mail	: hrs@hrs.gr		
Web site	: www.hrs.gr		

7. INDIAN REGISTER OF SHIPPING (IRS)

Head Office	: 52A, ADI SHANKARA-
	CHARYA MARG, OPP.
	POWAI LAKE, POWAI,
	MUMBAY - 400 072.
Telephone	: (91) (22) 5703627 (8 LINES)
Telefax	: (91) (22) 5703611
Telex	: 011-72109 IRS IN
E-mail	: irsho@bom3.vsni.net.in
Web site	: www.irclass.org

8. KOREAN REGISTER OF SHIPPING (KRS)

Head Office	23-7 JANG-DONG,	
	YUSUNG-KU, TAEJON	
	REP. OF KOREA 305-600	
P.O. Box	: 29 TAEJON REP.OF KOREA	
Telephone	: (82) (42) 869-9114	
Telefax	: (82) (42) 862-6011 - 6	
Web site	: www.krs.co.kr	

9. KOREAN CLASSIFICATION SOCIETY **DPR OF KOREA (KCS)**

Head Office : P.O. BOX 416. PYONGYANG DEMOCRATIC PEOPLES **REPUBLIC OF KOREA** Telephone : (850) (2) 331 8059 Telefax : (850) (2) 331 4416/4427 Telex : 38041 HS KP

10. LLOYD'S REGISTER OF SHIPPING (LR)

100 LEADENHALL STREET,
LONDON, EC 3A 3BP
UNITED KINGDOM
(44) (171) 709 9166
(44) (171) 4884796
888379 LR LON. G
it. helpdesk@lr.org
www.lr. org

11. NIPPON KAIJI KYOKAI (NK)

Head Office	: 4-7. KIOI-CHO, CHIYODA-KU, TOKYO
	102-8567, JAPAN
Telephone	: (81) (3) 3230-1201
Telefax	: (81) (3) 5226-2012
Telex	: J22975 CLASSNK,
	2324280 CLASSNKJ
Cable	: CLASSNK
E-mail	: cld@class nk.or.jp
Web site	: www.class nk.or.jp

12. POLISH REGISTER OF SHIPPING (PRS) 16. VIETNAM REGISTER (VR)

Head Office	: Al.Gen.Jozefa Hallera 126,	
	80-416 GdaDsk, POLAND	
Telephone	: (+48) (58) 346 17 00	
Telefax	: (+48) (58) 346 0392	
E-mail	: do @ prs.pl	
Web site	: www.prs.gda.pl	

REGISTRUL NAVAL ROMAN 13. (RNR)

Head Office	BD, DINICU GOLESCU NR. 38		
	SECTOR 1,		
	BUCURESTI 77113, ROMANIA		
Telephone	: (40) (01) 2223768, 6146431		
Telefax	: (40) (01) 2231972		
Telex	: 10256 rnrr		

14. RINAVE PORTUGUESA

Head Office	ESTRADA DO PACO DO		
	LUMIAR POLO		
	TECNOLOGICO, LOTE 17		
	1600 - 485 LISBOA,		
	PORTUGAL		
Telephone	: (351) 217 100 900		
Telefax	: (351) 217 100 920		
E-mail	: cr lisboa @ rinave.pt		
Web site	: www.rinave.pt		

15. SHIPS CLASSIFICATION MALAYSIA (SCM)

Head Office	NO. 1A, TINGKAT 1, BLOK 4 WORLDWIDE BUSINESS	
	CENTRE, JALAN KARATE	
	13/49, SEKSYEN 13, 40675	
	SHAH ALAM, SELANGOR	
	MALAYSIA	
Telephone	: (60) (03) 55138170	
Telefax	: (60) (03) 55138086	
E-mail	: scmhq@pd.jaring.my	

Head Office	: 1C KIM NGUU STR		
Telephone	RONAI - VIETNAM : (84) (4) 9714243/8219583;		
relephone	MOBILE : 091205853		
Telefax	: (84) (4) 8211320/9715839		
E-mail	: vr@hn.vnn.vn		
Web site	: www.vr.vnn.vn		

NO	CLASSIFICATION SOCIETIES	STATE	KIND OF COOPERATION
1	American Bureau of Shipping (ABS)	USA	Dual Class
2	Bureau Veritas (BV)	France	Dual Class
3	China Classification Society (CCS)	China	Mutual Representation
4	Det Norske Veritas (DnV)	Norway	Dual Class
5	Germanischer Lloyd (GL)	Germany	Mutual Representation
6	Hellenic Register of Shipping (HR)	Greece	Mutual Representation
7	Indian Register of Shipping (IRS)	India	Mutual Representation
8	Korean Register of Shipping (KRS)	Rep. of Korea	Mutual Representation
9	Korean Classification Society DPR of Korea (KCS)	DPR of Korea	Mutual Representation
10	Lloyd's Register of Shipping (LR)	UK	Dual Class
11	Nippon Kaiji Kyokai (NK)	Japan	Mutual Representation
12	Polish Register of Shipping (PRS)	Poland	Mutual Representation
13	Registrul Naval Roman (RNR)	Romania	Mutual Representation
14	Rinave Portuguesa	Portugal	Mutual Representation
15	Ships Classification Malaysia (SCM)	Malaysia	Mutual Representation
16	Vietnam Register (VR)	Vietnam	Mutual Representation

COOPERATION WITH FOREIGN CLASSIFICATION SOCIETIES

Table of Contents

Section 1 - General

Page

1.	Scope	1-1
2.	Documents for approval	1-1
3.	Definitions	1-2
4.	Materials	1-5
	Ventilator coamings	1-6
	Weathertight closures	1-7
7.	Fire closures	1-8
8.	Construction	
9.	Temperature, humidity and air flow measurements 1	-28

Section 2 - Regulation for particular ship spaces and installations

1.	Reference values for air changes	2-1
2.	Accomodation spaces	2-3
3.	Hospitals	2-5
4.	Galleys	2-6
5.	Control stations	2-6
6.	Paint lockers and lamp rooms	2-7
7.	Cargo holds	
8.	Holds for the transport of motor vehicles 2-	-10
9.	Main and auxiliary engine rooms and boiler rooms 2	-12
10.	Electrical machines	-14
11.	CO, Rooms	-14
12.	Refrigerating machinery rooms	-14
13.	Battery rooms 2	-16

Section 3 - Additional regulations for tankers

1.	General rules.	3-1
2.	Oil tankers, oil recovery vessels	3-2
3.	Liquefied gas tankers	3-7
	Chemical tankers, chemical incinerator ships	

Section 4 - Additional regulations for passenger ships

1.	Additional regulations for passenger ships of all sizes	4-1
2.	Additional regulations for passenger vessels	
	carrying more than 36 passenger	4-2

<u>X</u>

Section 1 - General

1. Scope

1.1 These Regulations are intended as a guide to the design and construction or ventilation systems.

1.2 They reflect the present state or the art. They must remain subject to the changes and additions dictated by technical progress. The diversity or ships and designs may necessitate specially engineered ventilation systems, in which case these Regulations shall be treated as a recommendation.

1.3 They contain parts of the BKI Construction Rules which are applicable to ventilation systems.

1.4 Due account is taken or the Amendments to SOLAS 2000 enforced up to February 1, 1992 as well as or ILO Convention No.92.

1.5 Sections 1 and 2 or these Regulations apply to all ventilation systems on all types or seagoing ships.

1.6 Sections 3 and 4 contain additional regulations for tankers and passenger ships.

1.7 The Regulations in connection with fire protection are valid generally also for cargo ships of less than 500 GRT.

1.8 The Regulations do not contain information on ventilation or refrigerated cargo holds.

2. Documents for approval

2.1 Arrangement drawings or the ventilation or air-conditioning systems stating the volumes or air, size or spaces, intended use or spaces, air changes, climatic conditions, sections or air ducts, type or mechanical ventilators, etc. are to be submitted in triplicate.

2.2 The ventilation equipment is to be included in the fire protection plan together with all the necessary details (DIN 87 903).

2.3 Where so agreed, measurements of temperature, humidity and air flow are to be performed after installation of the systems.

2.4 Proof of suitability of the electrical equipment for use in hazardous areas on board tankers, ro-ro ships, etc. is to be furnished by BKI-Form (F.212-2000), including the pertinent certificates (copies) issued by a recognized testing

institution.

3. Definitions

For the purposes of these Regulations the following definitions shall apply:

Air ducts

Thin-walled piping or ducting (circular or rectangular) used exclusively to conduct air.

Air pipes

Parts of tank pressure-equalizing systems not dealt with in these Regulations. See Rules for Hull, Volume II, Section 21.

Air trunks

Parts of the hull which may either themselves be used to conduct air or which contain air ducts as well as other lines (pipes, cables).

Ventilator coamings

Those thick-walled portions of air ducts which extend above a weather deck and are welded to it (see Regulation 19, LLC 1966).

Mechanical ventilation systems

Systems through which air is passed by ventilators driven hydraulically, pneumatically or by electric motors.

Natural ventilation systems

Systems in which the air movement is caused solely by temperature differences, natural wind or head wind.

Tankers

Ships for the carriage of flammable, toxic, caustic or otherwise hazardous liquids.

Oil tankers

Ships for the carriage of oil with a flash point of 60° C or below (closed-cup test) and Reid vapour pressure under atmospheric pressure as well as similar liquids in bulk.

Liquefied gas tankers

Ships for the carriage of liquefied gases in bulk (see Rules for Ships Carrying

Liquefied Gases in Bulk, Volume IX).

Chemical tankers

Ships for the carriage of hazardous chemicals in bulk (see Rules for Ships Carrying Dangerous Chemicals in Bulk, Volume X).

Accommodation spaces

Public spaces, corridors, lavatories, cabins, offices, hospitals, cinemas, games and hobbies rooms, barber shops, pantries without cooking appliances and similar spaces.

Public spaces

Those portions of the accommodation which are used for halls, dining rooms, lounges and similar permanently enclosed spaces.

Service spaces

Galleys, pantries containing cooking appliances, lockers, mail and specie rooms, stores, workshops other than those forming part of machinery spaces and similar spaces and trunks to such spaces.

Cargo holds

All spaces used for cargo (including cargo oil tanks) and trunks to such spaces.

Special category spaces

Enclosed spaces on passenger ship above or below the bulkhead deck intended for the carriage of motor vehicles with fuel in their tanks for their own propulsion, into and from which such vehicles can be driven and to which passengers have access.

Machinery spaces of category A

are those spaces and trunks to such spaces which contain:

- .1 internal combustion machinery used for main propulsion, or
- .2 internal combustion machinery used for purposes other than main propulsion where such machinery has in the aggregate a total power output of not less than 375 kW, or
- .3 any oil-fired boiler or an oil fuel unit.

Machinery spaces

Machinery spaces of category A and all other spaces containing propulsion machinery, boilers, oil fuel units, steam and internal combustion engines, generators and major electrical machinery, oil filling stations, refrigerating, stabilizing, ventilating and air-conditioning machinery and similar spaces, and trunks to such spaces.

Control stations

Spaces in which the ship's radio or main navigating equipment, the emergency source of power or the central fire-detecting or fire-control-detecting equipment.

Cargo areas

The cargo tanks, slop tanks, cargo containment system, spaces in which cargo tanks are installed, cargo pump rooms, pump rooms, cargo compressor rooms, cofferdams, ballast or void spaces adjacent to throughout the entire cargo tanks and slop tanks and also deck areas length and breadth of the part of the ship over the aforementioned spaces.

Where fitted, the cofferdams, ballast or void spaces at the after end of the aftermost hold space or of the forward end of the forwardmost hold space are excluded from the cargo area.

An area bounded by a 3 m spherical radius about a stern cargo connection counts as cargo area.

Cargo pump rooms

Spaces containing pumps and their accessories for the handling of cargo.

Pump rooms

Spaces located in the cargo area, containing pumps and their accessories for the handling of ballast water and oil fuel.

Hazardous areas on exposed decks

- a) On oil and chemical tankers:
 - .1 Cargo flash point above 60 °C, cargo heated to above 15 °C below its flash point:

Areas within 3 m of the heated tank openings and 3 m of ventilator openings or entrances to cargo pump rooms.

.2 Cargo flash point of 60 °C or below, or above 60 °C with cargo heated to above its flash point:

Areas (including those in partly enclosed spaces) within a spherical radius of 3 m about cargo tank openings, blow-off line outlets, cargo line flanges and cargo valves or of the entrances and ventilation openings of cargo pump rooms; exposed deck in the cargo area above all cargo tanks and holds including all ballast tanks and cofferdams within the cargo area and extending over the whole breadths of the ship and to a distance of 3 m forward and aft of the cargo area and up to a height of 2.4 m above the deck.

b) On liquefied gas tankers:

Areas (including those in partly enclosed spaces) within 3 m of cargo tank outlets, blow-off line outlets, cargo line flanges and cargo shutoff valves or of the entrances and ventilation openings of cargo pump and cargo compressor rooms; exposed deck above the cargo area including an area of the free deck extending 3 m forward and aft of the cargo area and up to a height of 2.4 m above the weather deck as well as in zones lying within 2.4 m, measured from the outer surface of the cargo tank system, if this surface is situated above the weather deck (is exposed to the weather).

c) On all tankers:

In the case of bow and stern loading equipment, exposed decks within the coamings and within a distance of 3 m forward of the coamings, up to a height of 2.4 m above the deck.

4. Materials

4.1 Parts which are welded together or to the hull must be made of weldable steels in accordance with the Rules for Materials, Volume V.

4.2.1 Air ducts are to be made of non-combustible material ¹⁾ (see Section 4, 2.1.2).

4.2.2 Short end portions of ducts measuring not more than 2 m in length and not more than 0.02 m^2 in cross-section (Ø160 mm) may be made of other material, provided that

- a) the material concerned has a low fire risk,
- b) only ventilation line terminal ducts are made of this material, and
- c) such ducts are located in a distance of 600 mm or more from "A" or "B" bulkhead/deck penetrations and from continuous "B" class ceiling penetrations. The distance is to be measured along the duct.
- **4.2.3** Other materials may be used for parts of the system of minor significance

1) As defined SOLAS 1974

for the ship's safety.

4.2.4 Any national regulations remain unaffected.

4.3 Ducts which are insulated for reasons of fire protection are to be made of steel, 8.10.1 b) and c) are then applicable.

As a guidance for the insulation with mineral wool (100 kg/m³) can be:

A 15 - 30 mm thickness A 30 - 50 mm thickness A 60 - 90 mm thickness

4.4 Air ducts are to be protected against corrosion.

4.5 Means must also be provided for the internal preservation of air trunks. A sufficient number of inspection openings is to be provided.

4.6 All insulating materials used must be non-combustible ¹⁾.

5. Ventilator coamings

5.1 The height of ventilator coamings on exposed freeboard decks and quarter decks as well as on exposed superstructure decks situated forward of a point located 0.25 L aft of the forward perpendicular must be at least 900 mm.

5.2 The height of ventilator coamings on exposed superstructure decks situated more than 0.25 L aft of the forward perpendicular must be at least 760 mm.

5.3 Should any necessary damaged stability calculation dictate greater coaming heights, these greater heights are to be applied.

5.4 Where the ventilator coaming height exceeds 900 mm, the coamings are to be specially strengthened.

5.5 The wall thickness of coamings with a free cross-section of up to 300 cm^2 (200 mm diameter) must be at least 7.5 mm and with free cross-sections of more than 1600 cm² (450 mm diameter) must be at least 10 mm. For intermediate values, interpolation is required. In superstructures which are not fully enclosed, a thickness of 6 mm is generally sufficient.

5.6 The wall thickness of ventilator posts must be at least equal to the wall thickness of the coamings as specified in 5.5.

5.7 The wall thickness of ventilator posts with a cross-section of more than 1600 cm^2 is to be increased in accordance with the anticipated loads.

1) As defined in SOLAS 1974

5.8 The wall thickness of ventilator houses are to be determined in the same way as for protective deckhouses (see Rules for Hull, Volume II).

5.9 In general, coamings and posts are to extend through the deck and are to be welded to the deck plating above and below.

If coamings or posts are welded to the top of the deck, reinforced fillet welds are to be applied externally and internally.

5.10 Coamings and posts specially exposed to the impact of the sea must have suitably reinforced hull connections.

5.11 Where the deck plating is less than 10 mm thick, a welding plate at least 10 mm thick is to be fitted with sides equal in length to about twice the length and breadth of the coaming.

5.12 For reinforcements of the strength deck in way of coamings and posts, see Rules for Hull, Volume II.

5.13 The outer edge of openings for ventilation pipe penetrations shall be located at a distance of at least 1 x the opening diameter from the side of the hull.

5.14 Where a deck beam is interrupted by a ventilator coaming, the strength of the deck structure is to be restored by fitting carlings.

6. Weathertight closures

6.1 Intakes and outlets of ventilation systems (to the open air) are to be provided with efficient weathertight closures. On ships less than 100 m in length the closures are to be permanently attached. On longer vessels they may be conveniently stowed near the ventilator openings to which they are to be fitted.

6.2 The weathertightness of the closures is to be tested by hosing.

6.3 Ball valves as a means of ventilator closure are permitted with special authorization only. In such cases the pipe diameter must not exceed 200 mm. A fire damper is then additionally required.

6.4 Wooden plugs, tarpaulin covers or similar closures are not acceptable.

6.5 Weathertight means of closures are required only in special cases for ventilator posts more than 4.5 m in height on exposed freeboard decks and quarter decks as well as on exposed superstructure decks situated forward of a point located 0.25 L aft of the forward perpendicular and for ventilator posts more than 2.3 m in height on superstructure decks more than 0.25 L aft of the forward perpendicular.

6.6 An unrestricted supply of air to essential consumers must be assured in all weather (see Section 2, 9.1).

The air supply to rooms in which combustible, toxic or suffocating gases or vapours may accumulate is also to be assured.

These requirements are considered to have been met where air is supplied exclusively through openings which conform to the provisions of Rule 19(3) of LLC 1966 for ventilators without weathertight closures (see 6.5).

6.7 Ventilation openings in the shell plating are not allowed below the freeboard or bulkhead deck.

7. Fire closures

7.1 Fire dampers at main inlets and outlets

7.1.1 Air supply and exhaust systems must be fitted at their main inlets and outlets to the open air with fire closures of non-combustible material which can be actuated from outside the protected space.

7.1.2 The thickness of steel fire dampers (in ducts and coamings) is shown in the following Table.

Diameter of duct [mm]	Cross-section of duct [m²]	Thickness of shutoff devices [mm]
up to 200	up to 0.03	4
over 200 up to 400	over 0.03 up to 0.13	5
over 400 up to 600	over 0.13 up to. 0.28	6
over 600 up to 800	over 0.28 up to. 0.50	7
over 800	over 0.50	8

7.1.3 If an incombustible material other than steel is intended to be used, the following conditions are to be met:

- The closing devices are to be strengthened accordingly.
- Non-combustibility of the damper material is to be proved by a test in accordance with IMO Res. A.472 (XII).
- The complete fire damper (housing, flap, etc.) is to be subjected to a one hour standard fire test on the basis of IMO Res. A.517 or an equivalent Regulation, with the damper flap being exposed to the fire.
- After that test the fire damper must still be in workable condition.
- The damper material must be resistant to corrosion and must be suitable for use at sea.
- The damper material must be capable of resisting the outside stresses, to

which it will be exposed during ship operation.

The Administration will have to approve of the material.

7.1.4 Hinges and bearings of the dampers are to be largely maintenance-free and easily accessible for inspections and repairs.

The means of control is to be capable of being locked in open and closed position.

When shut, the dampers must have close contact with a steel strip throughout their circumference.

7.1.5 All closures must be easily accessible and capable of being operated easily and safely.

The controls must not be located more than 2 m above deck (or standing position). They are to be clearly and permanently marked.

This also applies to the "open" and "closed" position of the closures.

7.1.6 Fire closures and weathertight closures may be combined.

In that case, weathertight closures are to be permanently attached, irrespective of the length of the ship.

7.1.7 Jalousie flaps or lamellar shutters are not permitted as fire dampers at main inlets and outlets.

7.1.8 Special requirements for fire dampers, e.g. on liquefied gas tankers, in emergency generator rooms and on ro-ro vessels are to be observed.

7.1.9 The location of fire dampers, including their identification numbers, is to be indicated in the 'Fire Control Plan'.

7.2 Automatically closing fire dampers within the duct system

7.2.1 Under certain conditions automatically closing fire dampers are to be fitted in the ducts.

7.2.2 These dampers shall close automatically at a release temperature of approx. 70 °C.

7.2.3 The dampers must also be capable of being closed manually from both sides of the bulkhead.

7.2.4 At least on one side of the division the damper is to be provided with an indicator, which shows the open/closed condition.

7.2.5 The dampers must be operationally safe.

7.2.6 The location of damper controls at main fire divisions (decks) must be readily accessible and be marked in red fluorescent paint.

7.2.7 The sensor for closing the damper automatically is to be placed within the air flow.

7.2.8 The thickness of the (steel) damper casings shall be at least 3 mm and 5 mm for ducts the heights/widths or diameters of which are up to and including 300 mm and 760 mm and over respectively (interpolation between both).

7.2.9 The thickness of a steel damper plate is to be not less than 3 mm.

7.2.10 A circumferential resting bar is recommended for the damper plate.

7.2.11 Drawings of the damper are to be submitted for approval.

7.2.12 A function test of the damper is to be performed on board the ship.

7.2.13 If a certificate on the fire safety of the dampers is requested, first a standard fire test with positive result is to be carried out by a recognized test institute in compliance with the IMO Recommendations.

7.2.14 If an incombustible material other than steel is intended to be used for the dampers, the requirements as per 7.1.3 are to be met.

7.3 Manually operated fire dampers within the duct system

7.3.1 Occasionally manually operated fire dampers or smoke flaps are required, e.g. in accordance with SOLAS 74, Chapter II-2, Regulation 9.7.5.2.1.2, for exhaust ducts from galley ranges or smoke dampers for separating various decks in accordance with SOLAS, where passenger ships with more than 36 passengers are concerned (Regulation 9.7.4.3).

7.3.2 The damper is to be provided with an indicator, which shows the open/closed position.

7.3.3 The thickness of the (steel) damper casing shall be at least 3 mm and 5 mm for ducts the heights/widths or diameters of which are up to and including 300 mm and 760 mm and over respectively (interpolation between both).

7.3.4 The thickness of a steel damper plate is to be not less than 3.0 mm.

7.3.5 A circumferential resting bar is recommended for the damper plate.

7.3.6 The damper is to be capable of being locked in open and closed position.

7.3.7 The controls and "open" and "closed" positions are to be clearly and permanently marked.

7.3.8 If an incombustible material other than steel is intended to be used for the dampers, the requirements as per 1.1.3 are to be met.

8. Construction

8.1 Main intakes and outlets are to be fitted with gratings to prevent fouling and the entry of rats and other large vermin (see 8.15.1 and Section 2, 2.21).

8.2 Ducts are to be routed in such a way that neither machinery nor switch gear can be endangered by condensation or spray water. Where necessary, water traps, baffles and similar devices are to be fitted.

Effective water traps are to be provided with oppositely directed baffle plates. The lowermost baffle of the water trap is to be provided with a drainage tube of approx. 50 mm in thickness and a non return valve.

8.3 Where necessary, outlet openings inside spaces are to be provided with shut off devices and means for reversing the direction of flow.

8.4 Unless otherwise specified in the relevant sections, the dimensional calculation of the free cross-section of the ducts of natural ventilating systems is to be based on a maximum flow velocity of 4 m/s.

8.5 Natural ventilating systems shall not employ a branched ducting system.

8.6 Ventilating equipment is to be designed to keep noise pollution to a tolerable level.

8.7 Short-circuiting between intakes and exhaust openings must be preventable even under unfavorable steaming conditions.

The position of the intake and exhaust openings must be clearly indicated in the plans of the ventilating system to be submitted.

8.8.1 All ventilators on board are to be chosen, designed and arranged such as to ensure undisturbed continuous operation under the conditions of trim, air temperatures and other environmental conditions mentioned in Rules for Electrical Installations, Volume IV, Section 1.

8.8.2 Means must be provided for switching off mechanical ventilators from an easily accessible position outside the ventilated spaces.

The position must continue to be accessible even in the event of a fire in the ventilated space.

All switching positions for ventilator motors are to be indicated in the fire control plan (see 2.2).

8.9.1 Where air ducts with a cross-section of up to 0.02 m^2 (free Ø 160 mm) pass

through Type A partitions, the penetrations shall be fume-tight.

8.9.2 Where air ducts with a cross-section of more than 0.02 m^2 (Ø160 mm) pass through "A" bulklheads or " A " decks, the penetrations are to be fitted with steel sleeves, unless this part of the duct is itself made of steel.

Sleeves or ducts are to have a minimum thickness of 3 to 5 mm over a length of 900 mm and are to be insulated in a manner compatible with the bulkhead or deck (see 8.10.1 b) (preferably over a length of 450 mm on each side of the bulkhead).

On application, authorization may be given for equivalent designs.

This Regulation continues to apply even where the duct passing through the "A" bulkhead or the " A "-deck does not ventilate the adjoining spaces.

8.9.3 Air ducts with a cross-section of more than 0.075 m^2 (free Ø 310 mm) are, in addition, to be fitted with automatic fire dampers in accordance with 7.2.

The duct between damper and bulkhead/deck is to be made of steel and is to be insulated in accordance with the insulation of the partitions. The plate thickness of the duct is to be in accordance with 7.2.8.

These fire dampers may be dispensed with where the duct is. insulated and is routed without opening through a space bounded by "A " bulkheads. A ventilator room is acceptable in this connection if ventilation openings in ducts do not exist within this room, Thin sheeted ducts, ventilator housings, etc. will be assumed as being of A-0 type. Sleeve-links (vibration compensators) at ventilators are to be protected by non-combustible covers. Approval by the competent Administration has to obtained.

8.9.4 Ventilation openings without ducts are not acceptable in type A divisions.

8.10.1 Where air ducts provided for machinery spaces of category A, galleys, car deck spaces and ro-ro cargo spaces pass through accommodation spaces, service spaces or control stations, the following conditions are to be met:

- a) The ducts are to be made of steel.
- b) Up to and including a diameter or height/width of 300 mm, the wall thickness of the ducts must be 3 mm, and for a diameter or height/width of 760 mm or over it must be 5 mm. Intermediate values are to be determined by linear interpolation.
- c) The ducts are to be suitably supported and stiffened.
- d) Automatic fire dampers in accordance with 7 .2 are to be fitted close to the boundary penetration. For the duct between boundary and damper 8.10.1
 b) is to be applied.

- e) The penetration is to be sealed.
- f) A-60 insulation is to be fitted between the pierced boundary of the ventilated rooms and a point at least 5 m beyond the automatic fire damper.
- g) Where the insulation specified in f) is fitted continuously in accommodation spaces, service spaces and control stations, the automatic fire damper may be dispensed with.

8.10.2 For galley ventilation see Section 2, 4.

8.11.1 Where air ducts for accommodation spaces, service spaces and control stations pass through machinery spaces of category A, galleys, car deck spaces and ro-ro cargo spaces, the following conditions are to be met:

- a) The ducts are to be made of steel.
- b) Up to and including a diameter or height/width of 300 mm, the wall thickness of the ducts must be 3 mm, and for a diameter of height/width of 760 mm or over it must be 5 mm. Intermediate values are to be determined by linear interpolation.
- c) The ducts are to be suitably supported and stiffened.
- Automatic fire dampers in accordance with 7 .2 are to be fitted close to the bulkhead penetration. For the duct between boundary and damper 8.11.1
 b) is to be applied.
- e) The penetrations are to be sealed and insulated.
- f) Where the ducts within machinery spaces of category A, galleys, motor vehicle holds and ro-ro cargo holds are fitted with continuous A-60 insulation, the automatic fire damper may be dispensed with.
- 8.11.2 For galley ventilation see Section 2, 4:

8.12.1 Where air ducts with a cross-section of up to 0.02 m^2 (Ø 160 mm) pass through "B"-walls, the penetrations are to be made fume-tight.

8.12.2 Where air ducts with a cross-section of more than 0.02 m^2 (Ø 160 mm) pass through "B"-walls, the penetrations are to be fitted with steel sleeves unless this part of the duct is itself made of steel. Sleeve or duct shall conform to this requirement to a distance of 450 mm on each side of the bulkhead, and the bulkhead penetration shall be made fumetight. Only in exceptional cases may the sleeve be located on one side only (900 mm).

8.13 Ducts leading through watertight bulkheads and other hull elements

8.13.1 In general, watertight bulkheads must not be penetrated by air ducts.

Where (in exceptional cases) this cannot be avoided, ventilator openings are admissible on one side of the bulkhead only. Ventilation ducts without openings are to be thick-walled and watertight.

8.13.2 If on board cargo vessels with **Ls** exceeding 100 m air ducts are arranged within areas assumed to be damaged in the damaged condition, arrangements are to be made for preventing the floading of other non-damaged compartments.

8.13.3 Large duct penetrations in girders, web-plate beams and other hull structural elements are subject to approval.

8.14 Duct insulation for fire protection

8.14.1 The fire protection insulation of air ducts and sleeves is to be in accordance with the space-group pairings indicated below. The tables relating to the bulkheads, are likewise applicable to ducts routed through decks.

A space pairing refers to the spaces separated by a bulkhead or deck, irrespective of any other spaces served by the duct in question.

8.14.2 Passenger ships for more than 36 passengers

· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	1	· · · · ·		<u> </u>		1						<u>r</u>		
Room / spaces	(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)	(5)	(6)	(7)	(8)	(9)	(10)	(11)	(12)	(13)	(14)
Control Stations (1)	B-0 ^a	A-0	A-0	A-0	A-0	A-60	A-60	A-60	A-0	A-0	A-60	A-60	A-60	A-60
Stairways (2)		A-0 ^a	A-0	A-0	A-0	A-0	A-15	A-15	A-0°	A-0	A-15	A-30	A-15	A-30
Corridors (3)			B-15	A-60	A-0	B-15	B -15	B -15	B-15	A-0	A-15	A-30	A-0	A-30
Evacuation stations and external escape routes (4)				-	A-0	A-60₫	A-60₫	A-60₫	A-0 ^d	A-0	A-60⁵	A-60⁵	A-60⁵	A-60 ^b
Open deck spaces (5)					-	A-0	A-0	A-0	A-0	A-0	A-0	A-0	A-0	A-0
Accomodation spaces of minor fire risk (6)						B-0	B-0	B-0	с	A-0	A-0	A-30	A-0	A-30
Accomodation spaces of moderate fire risk (7)							B-0	B-0	с	A-0	A-15	A-60	A-15	A-60
Accomodation spaces of greater fire risk (8)								B-0	с	A-0	A-30	A-60	A-15	A-60
Sanitary and similar spaces (9)									с	A-0	A-0	A -0	A-0	A-0
Tanks, voids and auxiliary machinery spaces presenting little or no fire risk (10)										A-0 ^a	A-0	A-0	A-0	A-0
Auxiliary machinery spaces, cargo spaces, cargo and other oil tanks and other similar spaces of moderate fire risk (11)											A-0 ^a	A-0	A-0	A-15
Machinery spaces and main galleys (12)												A-0 ^a	A-0	A-60
Storerooms, work- shops, pantries etc (13)			-										A-0 ^a	A- 0
Other spaces in which flammable liquids are stowed (14)														A-30

"A" -bulkheads within main fire zones

Notes :

- a Where adjacent spaces are in the same numerical category and the superscript ^a appears, a bulkhead or deck between such spaces need not be fitted if deemed unnecessary by the Administration. For example, in category (12) a bulkhead need not required between a galley and its annexed pantries provided that the pantry bulkheads and decks maintain the integrity of the galley boundaries. A bulkhead is, however, required between a galley and a machinery space even though both spaces are in category (12).
- b The ship's side, to the waterline in the lightest seagoing condition, superstructure and deckhouse sides situated below the adjacent to the liferafts and evacuation slides may be reduced to "A-30".
- c Where public toilets are installed completely within the stairway enclosure, the public toilet bulkhead within the stairway enclosure can be of "B" class integrity.
- d Where spaces of category 6,7,8 and 9 are located completely within the outer perimeter of the muster station, the bulkhead of these spaces are allowed to be of "B-0" class integrity. Control positions for audio, video and light installations may be considered as part of the muster station.

For determining the appropriate fire integrity standards to be applied to the boundary structures between adjacent spaces, the latter have been classified into the following categories 1 -14 according to their fire risk. The number in brackets preceding each category refers to the applicable vertical or horizontal division in table.

(1) Control stations

Spaces containing emergency sources of power and lighting; wheelhouse and chart-room; spaces containing the ship's radio equipment; fire-extinguishing rooms, fire-control rooms and fire-recording stations; control room for propulsion machinery when located outside the propulsion machinery space, e.g. on the bridge, but not the engine control room; spaces containing centralized fire alarm equipment; spaces containing the centralized emergency public address system stations and equipment.

(2) Stairways

Interior stairways, lifts and escalators (other than those wholly contained within the machinery spaces) for passengers and crew and enclosures thereto.

In this connection a stairway which is enclosed at only one deck shall be regarded as part of the space from which it is not separated by a fire door.

(3) Corridors

Passenger and crew corridors and lobbies.

(4) Evacuation stations and external escape routes

Survival craft stowage area; open deck spaces and enclosed promenades forming lifeboat and liferaft embarkation and lowering stations; muster stations, internal and external; external stairs and open decks used for escape routes; the ship's side to the waterline in the lightest seagoing

condition, superstructure and deckhouse sides situated below and adjacent to the liferaft and evacuation slide embarkation areas.

(5) Open deck spaces

Open deck spaces and enclosed promenades clear of lifeboat and liferaft embarkation and lowering stations; air spaces (spaces outside superstructures and deckhouses).

(6) Accommodation spaces of minor fire risk

Cabins containing furniture and furnishings of restricted fire risk.

Offices and dispensaries containing furniture and furnishings of restricted fire risk.

Public spaces containing furniture and furnishings of restricted fire risk and. having a deck area of less than 50 square metres .

(7) Accommodation spaces of moderate fire risk

Spaces as indicated under (6) but containing furniture and furnishings of other than restricted fire risk.

Public spaces containing furniture and furnishings of ,restricted fire risk and covering a deck area of 50 square meters or more.

Isolated lockers and small store-rooms in accommodation spaces of less than 4 m^2 (in which flammable liquids are not stowed).

Sale Shops;

Motion picture projection and film stowage rooms;

Diet kitchens (containing no open flame);

Cleaning gear lockers (in which flammable liquids are not stowed);

Laboratories (in which flammable liquids are not stowed);

Pharmacies;

Small drying rooms (with a deck area of 4 square meters or less);

Specie rooms.

(8) Accommodation spaces of greater fire risk

Public spaces containing furniture and furnishings of other than restricted

fire risk and having a deck area of 50 square meters or more; barber shops and beauty parlours.

(9) Sanitary and similar rooms

Communal sanitary facilities, showers, baths, water closets, etc;

Small laundries;

Indoor swimming pool area;

Operating rooms;

Isolated pantries containing no cooking appliances in accommodation spaces.

Private sanitary facilities shall be considered a portion of the space in which they are located.

(10) Tanks, voids and auxiliary machinery spaces having little or no fire risk

Water tanks forming part of ship's structure;

Voids and cofferdams;

Auxiliary machinery spaces which do not contain machinery having a pressure lubrication system and where storage of combustibles is prohibited, such as:

Ventilation and air-conditioning rooms; windlass room; steering gear room; stabilizer equipment room; electrical propulsion motor room, rooms containing section switchboards and purely electrical equipment other than oil-filled electrical transformers (above 10 kVA); shaft and pipe tunnels; spaces for pumps and refrigerating machinery (not handling or using flammable liquids); closed trunks serving the spaces listed above; other closed trunks, such as pipe and cable trunks.

(11) Auxiliary machinery spaces, cargo spaces, special category spaces, cargo and other oil tanks and other similar spaces of moderate fire risk

Cargo oil tanks;

Cargo holds, trunkways and hatchways;

Refrigerated chambers;

Oil fuel tanks (where installed in separate space with no machinery);

Shaft and pipe tunnels allowing storage of combustibles;

Auxiliary machinery spaces as in category 10 which contain machinery having a pressure lubrication system or where storage of combustibles is permitted;

Oil fuel filling stations;

Spaces containing oil-filled transformers (over 10 kVA);

Spaces containing turbine and reciprocating steam engine driven auxiliary generators and small internal combustion engines of power output up to 110 kW driving emergency generators, sprinkler, drencher or fire pumps, bilge pumps, etc.

Closed trunks serving the spaces listed above.

(12) Machinery spaces and main galleys

Main propulsion machinery rooms (other than electric propulsion motor rooms) and boiler rooms;

Auxiliary machinery spaces other than those in categories 10 and 11 which contain internal combustion machinery or other oil-burning, heating or pumping units;

Main galleys and annexes;

Trunks and casings to the spaces listed above.

(13) Storerooms, workshops, pantries, etc.

Main pantries not annexed to galleys;

Main laundry;

Large drying rooms (with a deck area of more than 4 square meters);

Miscellaneous stores;

Mail and baggage rooms;

Garbage rooms;

Workshops (not part of machinery spaces, galleys, etc.).

Storerooms of 4 m² and over, in which no combustible liquids are stored.

(14) Other spaces, in which flammable liquids are stored

Lamp rooms;

Paint rooms;

Storerooms containing flammable liquids (including dyes, medicines, etc.);

Laboratories (in which flammable liquids are stowed).

<u>1-20</u>

Rooms/spaces		(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)	(5)	(6)	(7)	(8)	(9)	(10)	(11)
Control stations	(1)	A-0°	A-0	A-60	A-0	A-15	A-60	A-15	A-60	A-60	*	A-60
Corridors	(2)		С	B-0	B-0 A-0°	B-0	A-60	A-0	A-0	A-0	*	A-30
Accommodation spaces	(3)			C ^{a,b}	B-0 A-0℃	B-0	A-60	A-0	A-0	A-0	*	A-30
Stairways	(4)				В-0 А-0 ^с	B-0 A-0 ^c	A-60	A-0	A-0	A-0	*	A-30
Service rooms (low risk)	(5)					С	A-60	A-0	A-0	A-0	*	A-0
Machinery spaces category A	of (6)						*	A-0	A-09	A-60	*	A-60
Other machinery spaces	(7)							A-0 ^d	A-0	A-0	*	A-0
Cargo spaces	(8)									A-0	*	A-0
Service spaces (high risk)	(9)									A-0 ^d	*	A-30
Open decks	(10)										-	A-0
Ro-Ro cargo spac	ces (11)											★ ^h

Cargo ships Fire bulkheads

Notes :

- a No special requirements are imposed upon bulkheads in methods II C and III C.
- b In case of Method III C "B" class bulkheads of "B-O" rating shall be provided between spaces or groups of spaces of 50 m² and over in area.
- c For clarification as to which applies, see regulations 9.2.3.2 and 9.2.3.4.
- d Where spaces are of the same numerical category and superscript d appears, a bulkhead or deck of the rating shown in the tables is only required when the adjacent spaces are for a different purposes, e.g. in category (9). A galley next to a galley does not require a bulkhead but a galley next to a paint room requires an "A-0" bulkhead.
- e Bulkheads separating the wheelhouse, chart room and radio room from each other may be "B-0" rating.
- f "A-O" rating may be used if no dangerous goods are intended to be carried or if such goods are stowed not less than 3 m horizontally from such bulkhead.
- g For cargo spaces in which dangerous goods are intended to be carried, regulation 54.2.8 applies.
- h Bulkheads and decks separating ro-ro cargo spaces shall be capable of being closed reasonably gastight and such divisions shall have "A" class integrity in so far as is reasonable and practicable in the opinion of the Administration.
- ★ Where an asterisk appears in the tables, the division is required to be of steel or other equivalent material but is not required to be of "A" class standard.

For determining the appropriate fire integrity standards to be applied to divisions between adjacent spaces, such spaces are classified according to their fire risk as shown in categories 1 to 11 below. The number in parentheses preceding each category refers to the 'applicable column or row in the tables.

(1) Control stations

Spaces containing emergency sources of power and lighting; wheelhouse and chart room; spaces containing the ship's radio equipment fire extinguishing rooms, fire control rooms and fire-recording stations; control room for propulsion machinery when located outside the machinery space; spaces containing centralized fire-alarm equipment.

(2) Corridors

Corridors and lobbies.

(3) Accommodation spaces

Spaces as defined in 3, excluding corridors.

(4) Stairways

Interior stairways, lifts and escalators (other than those wholly contained within the machinery space), and enclosures thereto.

In this connection, a stairway which is enclosed only at one level shall be regarded as part of the space from which it is not separated by a fire door.

(5) Service spaces (low risk)

Lockers and store-rooms not having provisions for the storage of flammable liquids and having areas less than 4 m² and drying rooms and laundries.

(6) Machinery spaces of category A

Spaces as defined in 3.

(7) Other machinery spaces

Spaces as defined in 3, excluding machinery spaces of category A.

(8) Cargo spaces

All spaces used for cargo (including cargo oil tanks) and the trunkways and hatchways to such spaces.

(9) Service spaces (high risk)

Galleys, pantries containing cooking appliances, paint and lamp rooms, lockers and store-rooms having areas of 4 m² or more, spaces for the storage of flammable liquids, and workshops other than those forming part of the machinery spaces.

(10) Open decks

Open deck spaces and enclosed promenades having no fire risk. Air spaces (the space outside superstructures and deckhouses).

(11) Ro-ro cargo spaces

Cargo spaces intended for the carriage of motor vehicles with fuel in their tanks for their own propulsion.

Section 1 - Biro Klasifikasi Indonesia

Rooms/spaces		(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)	(5)	(6)	(7)	(8)	(9)	(10)
Control stations	(1)	A-0°	A-0	A-60	A-0	A-15	A-60	A-15	A-60	A-60	*
Corridors	(2)		с	В-0	B-0 A-0ª	B-0	A-60	A-0	A-60	A-0	*
Accommodation spaces	(3)			с	B-0 A-0ª	B-0	A-60	A-0	A-60	A-0	*
Stairways	(4)				B-0 A-0ª	B-0 A-0ª	A-60	A-0	A-60	A-0	*
Service rooms (low risk)	(5)					с	A-60	A-0	A-60	A-0	*
Machinery spaces of category A	(6)						*	A-0	A-0 [₫]	A-60	*
Other machinery spaces	(7)							A-0 [⊳]	A-0	A-0	*
Cargo pump-rooms	(8)								*	A-60	*
Service spaces (high risk)	(9)									A-0 [⊳]	*
Open decks	(10)										-

Tankers Fire bulkheads

Notes :

a Which value applies is to be determined by reference to the SOLAS 1974.

- b Where spaces are of the same numerical category and superscript b appears, a bulkhead or deck of the rating shown in the table is only required when the adjacent spaces are for a different purposes, e.g. in category (9). A galley next to a galley does not require a bulkhead but a galley next to a paint room requires an "A-0" bulkhead.
- c Bulkheads separating the wheelhouse, chart room and radio room from each other may be "B-0" rating.
- d Bulkheads and decks between cargo pump-rooms and machinery spaces of category A may be penetrated by cargo pump shaft glands and similar glanded penetrations, provided that gastight seals with efficient lubrication or other means of ensuring the permanence of the gas seal are fitted in way of the bulkhead or deck.
- ★ Where an asterisk appears in the table, the division is required to be of steel or other equivalent material but is not required to be of "A" class standard.

For determining the appropriate fire integrity standards to be applied to divisions between adjacent spaces, such spaces are classified according to their fire risk as shown in categories 1 to 10 below.

The number in parentheses preceding each category refers to the applicable column or row in the tables.

(1) Control stations

Spaces containing emergency sources of power and lighting; wheelhouse and chart room; spaces containing the ship's radio equipment; fire-extinguishing rooms, fire control rooms and fire-recording stations; control room for propulsion machinery when located outside the machinery space; spaces containing centralized fire-alarm equipment.

(2) Corridors

Corridors and lobbies.

(3) Accommodation spaces

Spaces as defined in Regulation 3, excluding corridors.

(4) Stairways

Interior stairways, lifts and escalators (other than those wholly contained within the machinery spaces) and enclosures thereto.

In this connection, a stairway which is enclosed only at one level shall be regarded as part of the space from which it is not separated by a fire door

(5) Service spaces (low risk)

Lockers and store-rooms having provisions for the storage of flammable liquids and having areas of less than 4 m² and drying rooms and laundries.

(6) Machinery spaces of category A

Spaces as defined in Regulation 3

(7) Other machinery spaces

Spaces as defined in Regulation 3, excluding machinery spaces of category A.

(8) Cargo pump-rooms

Spaces containing cargo pumps and entrances and trunks to such spaces.

(9) Service spaces (high risk)

Galleys, pantries containing cooking appliances, paint and lamp rooms, lockers and store-rooms having an area of 4 m² or more, spaces for the storage of flammable liquids and workshops other than those forming part of the machinery spaces.

(10) Open decks

Open deck spaces and enclosed promenades having no fire risk. Air spaces (the space outside superstructures and deckhouses).

8.15 Design of explosion-proof mechanical fans

8.15.1 Fan intake and outlet ducts (into the open air) are to be fitted with protective screens with a mesh size not exceeding 13 mm.

8.15.2 Overheating of the mechanical components of fans and the creation of sparks is to be avoided by appropriate design and by the choice of suitable materials. The safety clearance between the fan housing and the impeller must be such as to preclude any contact between the housing and the rotor.

The same applies to portable fans.

8.15.3 The requirements stated in 8.15.2 are considered to be met if the fan design and combination of materials conform to 8.15.4 or 8.15.5.

8.15.4

- a) The clearance between the impeller and the housing shall not be less than 1/10 of the impeller bearing diameter, subject to a minimum of 2 mm. This clearance need not, however, be greater than 13 mm.
- b) The following materials or combinations of materials may be used:
 - Non-metallic materials²⁾ for the impeller and/or the housing in way of the impeller, or
 - non-ferrous materials for the impeller and the housing, or
 - aluminium or magnesium alloys for the impeller and steel (including austenitic steel) for the housing, provided that a non- ferrous ring of adequate size is fitted in .way of the impeller.

²⁾ Non-metallic materials are to have an electrical resistance not exceeding 10⁻⁸ Ohm, unless special measures are taken for preventing the risk of supercharging on the surface of the material.
8.15.5 Any steel combination (including austenitic steel) may be used for the impeller and the housing, if the clearance is at least 13 mm.

8.15.6 A combination of aluminium or magnesium alloys for the impeller and steel for the housing or of steel for the impeller and aluminium or magnesium alloys for the housing is not allowed, irrespective of the clearance.

8.15.7 Where aggressive vapours occur, this fact is to be taken into account when selecting the materials.

8.15.8 Paints containing light metals are not to be used.

8.15.9 Fan shafts are to run in suitable anti-friction bearings. Plain bearings may only be used in cases where adequate maintenance is assured.

8.15.10 The fan shaft is to be so designed that its critical speed differs by at least 20 % from its operating speed.

8.15.11 The rotor is to be mounted and secured on the shaft in such a way that it cannot be twisted or displaced axially.

8.15.12 Fans must function safely and reliably despite permanent transverse inclinations of up to 15° and temporary heeling angles of up to 25° as well as with longitudinal inclinations of up to 10 for ships up to 150 m long or up to 5° for ships over 150 m in length.

8.15.13 The rotor is to be statically and dynamically balanced.

8.15.14 The rotor must be so designed that the clearance between the rotor and the housing experiences no significant change at rated speed. This requirement is considered to be satisfied if, in trial operation over 24 hours at 1.2 times the rated speed, the clearance is not reduced by more than 10%.

8.15.15 The rotor housing and the protective hood must possess sufficient mechanical strength. This requirement is considered to be satisfied if an impact test on the weakest components in accordance with DIN EN 50 014 (test weight 1 kg, dropping height 0,7 m, hemispherical striker made of hardened steel with a diameter of 25 mm) produces a dent small enough to avert contact with the rotor.

8.15.16 The fan must be electrically bonded to the hull.

The electrical leakage resistance of all metal parts of the fan and of the connected ducts must not exceed 10⁶ Ohm.

8.15.17 Electrostatically conductive belts are to be used for belt drives.

8.15.18 Where the electric motors are to be located outside the air stream (air duct), this point is mentioned in the relevant sections.

8.15.19 The types of explosion-proof enclosure shall be as specified in the relevant sections,

8.15.20 Sufficient spare parts are to be carried on board for every fan.

9. Temperature, humidity and air flow measurements

9.1 **Performance of measurements**

Measurements are subject to special agreement which must cover their nature and extent.

If the agreed accuracy of measurement cannot be achieved at reasonable cost, the client is to be notified of this before the measurement is performed.

9.2 Temperature measurement

9.2.1 Measuring equipment and procedure

Of the recommended mechanical and electrical contact thermometers, the mercury thermometer, the thermocouple and the resistance thermometer are particularly suitable.

A disadvantage of the glass thermometer is that, because of its relatively large mass and low coefficient of heat transmission (air against solid body), it needs to be installed at least 15 minutes prior to measurement to assume the temperature of its surroundings.

Thermocouples, on the other hand, react with virtually no inertia at all, due to their small mass at the hot soldered connection. Further advantages are that they can be fitted easily and offer practically no flow resistance.

Both thermocouples and resistance thermometers are subject to aging and therefore need to be recalibrated at intervals.

In work locations, the agreed point for measuring the air temperature should be at head height wherever possible. In spaces where considerable radiant heat is likely, e.g. in engine rooms, measurements are also to be performed close to vertical and horizontal partitions.

9.3 Air humidity measurement

9.3.1 The measurements are to be performed in the same places as air temperature measurements.

Instructions concerning measurement :

Atmospheric humidity is determined by the relative humidity φ in % and the air

pressure, or by the moisture content x expressed in g/kg dry air .

9.3.2 Relative humidity can be determined in various ways:

- directly, using a hygrometer,
- more accurately, using a psychrometer and measuring the dry and wet bulb temperature.

Where a psychrometer is used, Sprung's equation is applied to ascertain the relative humidity from the dry and web bulb temperatures and the barometer reading taken at the same time. As an approximation, it can also be determined by reference to an h-x diagram.

Agreement is to be reached concerning the points' of measurement in the accommodation area. As experience shows that the water vapour partial pressure is evenly distributed throughout the space, it is sufficient to designate one or two locations not directly affected by the air supply.

According to DIN 1946, Part 2, a tolerance of \pm 5 % on the specified value is permitted.

9.4 Air flow measurement

9.4.1 For measurement of the air changes, all openings except those directly assigned to the ventilation system are to be closed. Openings to be closed include hatches, companionways, bulkhead doors, etc.

9.4.2 The measurement is to be performed in the air duct using Prantl's pilot tube or at air intakes/outlets, using vane or shutter-type anemometers.

The correction values given in the instructions on the use of the instruments are to be taken into account when evaluating the measurements. The most recent calibration of the instruments shall not have taken place more than 2 years previously.

9.4.3 Measurement in the air duct is to be preferred wherever possible because of its simplicity and accuracy. For this operation, the cross-section of the duct should be divided into a sufficient number of compartments to enable the mean velocity in the duct to be calculated from the velocities measured in the individual compartments (reticular measurement).

The reticular measurements are evaluated by a simple arithmetic process to determine the mean value.

The designation of the measuring points depends amongst other things on the structure of the flow profile. A sufficient length of duct to overcome any air turbulence must, however, be provided. The entry distance (upstream of the

measuring point) must be at least 5 D, and the exit distance (downstream of the measuring point) must be at least 2 D. Where measurements are performed downstream of bends, shut off or regulating valves, a length of duct equivalent to 40 D is required. A measuring distance of 5 D is sufficient only where baffles are used to establish a stable flow profile. In this context, D refers to the diameter or to the equivalent diameter in the case of rectangular ducts

$$Dg = \frac{2 a b}{a + b}$$

If measurement in the duct is not possible owing to the unfavorable configuration of the length available, the measurement must be performed at the air intakes/outlets. Because of the spreading and/or deflection of the jet at air inlets, it is necessary, when measuring, to determine the direction of the air flow (using a length of thread or similar means).

9.5 A report on the measurements is to be prepared and attached to the certificate. The capacities of holds are to be determined from the ship's documents or from relevant drawings. The outside air temperature is to be measured and noted in the certificate as an indication of the air density and fan performance during the measurement.

Section 2

Regulations for particular ship spaces and installations

1. Reference values for air changes

1.1 The following table contains air change reference values for the design of ventilating systems.

1.2 These reference values, like all other data relating to air changes in these Regulations, refer to the empty space.

1.3 The reference values for air changes are not applicable to air-conditioning systems ¹⁾

Ventilated space	Air changes/h Supply air	Air changes/h Exhaust air	See text :	Remarks
Living and sleeping quarters	15		2	
Messes, saloons, officers	15	20		
Passageways		5		
Hospitals	12	12	3	
Galleys	20-40	40-60	4	
Pantries	15	30		
Sanitary rooms		10-15	2	
Laundries	10-20	15-30		
Drying rooms	25	30		
Control stations			5	
Wheelhouse			5.3	
Radio room			5.3 + 16.1	acc, to local heat
Paint and lamp rooms	10		6	
Dry cargo holds	in accordance with	in accordance with	7	
bry carge noide	owners' instruction	owners' instruction		
Cargo holds for air-cooled containers			7.14	
Cargo holds for coal	formula	formula	7.11	
Cargo holds for livestock	20	lonnaia	7.12	if possible
Cargo noids for investocit	20	1		reversible
Dangerous goods		6/2	7.13	
Motor vehicle holds		10/6	8.6	
Ro-Ro motor vehicle holds		10/0	8.7	
Engine room			9	acc, to local heat
Turbine room			9	acc, to local heat
Boiler room			9	acc. to local heat
Power source for emergency fire pump	10-15		9.15	
Cable ducts	10-10		9.17	
Electrical machines			10	l l
CO, cylinder room		15	11	lower-deck only
Refrigerating machine rooms	30		12.3	Group 1 refrigerant
Refrigerating machine rooms	>40 and formula	>40 and formula	12.4	Group 2 refrigerant
Battery rooms	formula	formula	13	
Separator rooms	loinidia	30	14.1	
Shaft tunnels		30	14.2	
Emergency generator rooms			14.3	acc. to local heat
		1	14.5	acc. to local field
Rooms for power electronics			16	
Gyroscopic compass rooms	10-12	10-12	16	
Rooms for dry provisions	10-12	10-12	16	
Workshops		1	16	acc. to local heat
Engine control rooms		5	17.1	acc. to local heat
Pipe tunnels on dry cargo ships		5	Section 3, 1.11	
Pipe tunnels on tankers		1	18	
Emergency fire extinguishing pump rooms	l	L	<u> </u>	L

1)

Where an air change figure is given both for supply and exhaust air, it is sufficient for the installation to be designed as an exhaust system provided that a deficit of supply air is assured.

Ventilated space	Air changes/h Supply air	Air changes/h Exhaust air	See Text :	Remarks
	Oil	Tankers		
Spaces in cargo area normally entered during cargo handling operations		20	see Section 3, 2.4	
Spaces in cargo area not normally entered		8	see Section 3, 2.5	
Gassafe spaces on oil recovery vessels and ships suitable for operation in oil-covered waters			see Section 3, 2.6	Over pressure

Liquefied Gas Tankers				
Cargo control room in gas safe area	8		see Section 3, 3.8.1.3	
Gas locks			see Section 3, 3.4.2	Over pressure
Spaces in cargo area entered during cargo handling operations	30	30	see Section 3.8	Whether incoming or exhaust air : see 3.8.1.5 and 3.8.1.6
Spaces in cargo area not normally entered		8	see Section 3, 3.9.6	

Chemical Tanker				
Spaces in cargo area entered during cargo handling operation	30 20	see Section 3, 4.3 see Section 3, 4.4	More air changes for certain cargo	
Spaces in cargo area not normally entered	8/16	see Section 3, 4.5.5	For portable fans without ducting	

Spaces housing incinerating furnace on chemicals incineration ships	45	see Section 3, 4.6.5.3	Over pressure in relation to furnace incinerating chamber
Spaces housing incinerator blowers on chemicals incineration ships	20	see Section 3, 4.6.6.3	Over pressure in relation to furnace incinerating chamber

2. Accommodation spaces

2.1 Accommodation spaces must be assured of sufficient air renewal under all the conditions of weather and climate proper to the proposed range of service.

2.2 Ventilating systems are to be capable of effecting the changes of air specified in 1.1.

2.3 Ships navigating in the tropics or similar regions are to be equipped with mechanical ventilation or an air-conditioning system. The tropics are the area lying between the Tropic of Cancer and the Tropic of Capricorn. Areas with similar climatic conditions include the following:

The Gulf of California,

the Gulf of Mexico and the waters round Florida,

the Red Sea,

the Persian Gulf and the northern Arabian Sea

the East China Sea to the south of the islands of Japan,

the northern Pacific to latitude 30° north.

2.4 Living and sleeping quarters, messes, pantries, other accommodation spaces, hospitals and offices must be directly connected to an air-conditioning system installed on the ship or must be provided with air-conditioning equipment.

2.5 Storerooms and sanitary rooms must at least have their air renewed from the air-conditioned rooms, and such air renewal may be effected via passageways situated in the air-conditioned area.

2.6 Air conditioning systems

2.6.1 The following conditions apply :

Every endeavor is to be made to attain the values given in the following Table in all rooms with direct air-conditioning except for pantries and dry provisions rooms.

Section	2 -	Biro	Klasifikasi	Indonesia

Outside	Air temperature	Room air temperature	Relative humidity inside room
below	+ 25°C + 25°C + 28°C + 30°C + 32°C + 35°C + 40°C + 45°C	+ 22 °C + 22 °C + 23 °C + 23,5 °C + 24 °C + 25 °C + 26,5 °C + 28 °C	$\begin{array}{c} 35 \% \text{ to } 70 \% \\ 35 \% \text{ to } 70 \% \\ 35 \% \text{ to } 65 \% {}^{1)} \\ 35 \% \text{ to } 65 \% {}^{1)} \\ 35 \% \text{ to } 65 \% {}^{1)} \\ 35 \% \text{ to } 65 \% {}^{1)} \\ 35 \% \text{ to } 60 \% {}^{1)} \\ 35 \% \text{ to } 55 \% {}^{1)} \\ 35 \% \text{ to } 50 \% \end{array}$
above	+ 45º C	+ 30 ° C	35 % to 40 %

2.6.2 On board other ships hydrazine filters are regarded as adequate protection against cancerogenous substances. The regulations of the respective flag states concerning dangerous substances are to be observed.

2.6.3 The total air supply to air-conditioned rooms shall contain not less than 50 % fresh air.

2.6.4 The minimum volume of air for air-conditioned rooms is determined by the higher of the following values:

- a) the volume needed to comply with 2.6.1 a)
- b) the volume needed to comply with 2.6.1 b)
- c) 30 m³/h for each intended occupant of the room.
- d) The number of hourly air changes in messes and recreation rooms shall be at least 8 and in all other rooms at least 6.

2.7 Cabins with an atmosphere shared with their own sanitary facilities must be supplied with approximately 10% more incoming air that is extracted from the sanitary space.

2.8 When cooling, the temperature of the supply air shall not be more than 10° C below the mean room temperature.

2.9 The temperature variation within a room should not be greater than 2° C.

2.10 Air-conditioning systems are to encompass a number of control areas in which the temperature can be indecently regulated. The minimum quantity of air per hour and person is to be observed.

2.11 The air-conditioning system must be equipped with its own refrigerating unit.

2.12.1 The velocity and direction of the air flow are to be chosen so as to prevent troublesome draughts. Air outlets shall not be located at the .head end of bunks.

2.12.2 Air movements in the accommodation area should not exceed 0,2 to 0,3 m/s. The accommodation area means the area in which persons are normally seated or lying down.

2.12.3 The air velocity through exhaust gratings may not exceed 5 m/s.

2.13 Air intake apertures are to be sited in such a way that no harmful or noxious foreign substances are sucked into the accommodation spaces.

2.14 Sufficient means must be provided to ensure the emergency ventilation of accommodation spaces in the event of a failure affecting the drive of a mechanical ventilating or air-conditioning system (e.g. by opening windows).

2.15 The exhaust air from pantries and sanitary rooms is generally to be directly and independently conducted to the outside atmosphere.

2.16 Air equalization apertures in doors are to be placed in the bottom third of the door. On the escape side, they must be provided with means of closure made of incombustible material $^{2)}$

The clear cross-section of the opening may not exceed 0,05 m².

2.17 The same also applies to air equalization ducts between cabin and passageway. Here, the closing shutter must be operable from the escape side.

2.18 Doors in Type A partitions may not have any openings.

2.19 The balance of incoming and exhaust air should be equalized by decks.

2.20 Wherever necessary, hot air, fumes or humidity are to be extracted immediately at their point of origin within the space.

2.21 It is recommended with major ventilating systems, including those on board cargo ships, to separate individual decks and/or individual groups of spares by smoke dampers in the air ducts (see Section 1, 7.3)

3. Hospitals

3.1 The exhaust air of the hospital and its sanitary room is to be directly and independently conducted to the outside atmosphere.

3.2 Hospitals must be provided with an air supply which is either independent of other systems or is at least isolated from the latter by non-return flaps.

²⁾ As defined in SOLAS 1974

3.3 The exhaust-air rate shall exceed the supply-air rate, if the hospital is not provided with an air balance aperture leading to the free deck.

3.4 If the mechanical exhaust-air system of the hospital is dimensioned so as not to be capable of evacuating 100 % of the supply air of the hospital in the event of failure of its drive, an additional air balance aperture leading to the free deck is to be provided.

3.5 Air equalization apertures are not permitted in sickroom doors leading to passageways.

3.6 The ventilating system for the consulting room and the dispensary is separate from that for the hospital.

4. Galleys

4.1 Galley exhaust ventilation must be separate from the ventilation system for other spaces.

4.2 Supply ventilation should preferably be independent of the ventilation system for other spaces.

If supply ventilators for other accommodations or service spaces (e.g. the air-conditioning system) simultaneously supply the galley, the ducts/pipes are to be separately conducted to the galley from the ventilator/air conditioner.

In that case either at the galley wall or inside the ventilator room always an (automatically or manually operated) fire damper is to be provided (see Section 1, 7.2 or Section 1, 7.3).

- **4.3** For the galley ventilation Section 1, 8.10.1 and Section 1, 8.11.1 are to be observed.
- **4.4** Each exhaust duct from a canopy is to be equipped with :
- a) a grease trap which can easily be removed for cleaning;
- b) a fire damper located in the lower end of the duct;
- c) devices for switching off the exhaust fan, which can be operated from the galley;
- d) permanently installed devices for extinguishing a fire inside the duct.
- **4.5** The necessary air changes are specified in 1.1 and 2.6.4 respectively.

5. Control stations

5.1 For control stations located outside engine rooms, all practically feasible measures are to be taken to ensure satisfactory ventilation, visibility and freedom from smoke so that, in the event of fire, the machines and equipment in these rooms can be supervised and continue to be operated effectively. Two supply ventilators are to be

provided which shall be mutually independent and capable of being operated optionally. Their intake openings shall be sited in such a way as to minimize the danger of smoke penetrating simultaneously into both openings. Biro Klasifikasi Indonesia may waive the application of these Rules in the case of control stations situated on, and opening on to, an open deck or in circumstances where means of closure provided locally would have the same effect.

Deviations are likewise admissible for "unattended" control stations.

Instead of the two ventilators, a combination of a reversible mechanical ventilator and natural ventilation is also possible.

5.2 Paras. Section 1, 8.10.1 and Section 1, 8.11.1 are to be complied with.

5.3 For raisable wheelhouses, in general, mechanical ventilation is not stipulated.

6. Paint lockers and lamp rooms

6.1 Paint lockers and lamp rooms must have a ventilation system capable of effecting at least 10 changes of air per hour. It may not be connected to the ventilation systems serving other rooms.

The ducts are to be arranged such that both vapours lighter than air and vapours heavier than air are removed.

Where CO_2 is used for fire extinguishing within these spaces, a mechanical exhaust ventilation is to be provided.

6.2 The drives of mechanical ventilators are to be installed outside the rooms or are to be of explosion-proof type.

6.3 For electrically driven axial fans, use is to be made of motors having at least explosion group II B and temperature class T 3.

6.4 The ventilator design must conform to Section 1, 8.15.

6.5 The cables of ventilator motors exposed to the exhaust air flow have to be arranged such as to be mechanically protected, e.g. in tubes leading up to the terminal box.

7. Cargo holds

7.1 Where the nature of the cargo so requires, every cargo hold must be capable of being ventilated.

7.2 Cargo hold ventilating systems shall not be connected to other rooms/spaces.

7.3 The drives of mechanical cargo hold ventilators are to be installed outside the holds. (Axial fans are, however, permitted.)

7.4 For the types of protection to be applied to ventilating systems and the associated electrical equipment, see the Rules for Electrical Installations, Volume IV, Section 1, K.1.

7.5 Air ducts are to be so installed that they are largely protected from damage.

7.6 Penetrations for ducts through watertight bulkheads are subject to special approval by Biro Klasifikasi Indonesia.

Ventilation openings in such ducts are permitted only on one side of the bulkhead.

The watertight air duct must have the same mechanical strength as the surrounding bulkhead at the same height.

7.7 Air ducts may only be located forward of the collision bulkhead if they constitute, or may be regarded as, recesses in the bulkhead structure. No part of the ducts may be located within the area extending to 0,05 L aft of the forward perpendicular.

7.8 A common air trunk for two cargo holds is to be divided by a watertight partition extending upwards to the stipulated coaming height specified in Section 1, 5.

The installation of a common fire damper shall not establish a connection between the two holds.

7.9 Where parts of a cargo hold have to be kept separate from each other for reasons of freeboard or fire protection (e.g. separate flooding with CO2), 7.8 applies in analogous manner.

7.10 Portions of cargo hold air ducts routed through the accommodation area must be gastight.

7.11 Coal cargo

7.11.1 Where coal cargo is carried, the free cross-section of all the ventilators serving a cargo hold must, as a minimum requirement, conform to the following formula:

 $F = 10 \times \ell \times b \qquad (cm^2)$

where: ℓ = length of hold (m) b = breadth of hold (m)

7.11.2 At least one ventilator is required at each end of the hold. Holds over 25 m long must have three ventilators, and holds over 15 m wide must have four ventilators.

7.11.3 The means of ventilating the surface of the coal cargo must be specially effective. However, direct introduction of air into the coal has to be avoided; see. "Code of Safe Practice for Solid Bulk Cargoes".

7.11.4 Natural supply ventilators are to be sited aft, natural exhaust ventilators forward.

7.11.5 Where gas-emitting coal cargo is carried, the motors of electrically driven axial fans are to have explosion-proof enclosure corresponding at least to explosion group II A and temperature class T3.

7.12 Holds for the transport of livestock

7.12.1 Holds for the transport of livestock must be provided with mechanical ventilating systems capable of effecting at least 20 changes of air per hour.

7.12.2 Some of the air ducts must extend downwards to a distance of about 0,30 m from the cargo deck.

7.13 Dangerous goods

7.13.1 For cargo holds suitable for the transport of dangerous goods separate mechanical exhaust ventilation is to be provided.

7.13.2 2/3 of the quantity of air are to be exhausted in the lower and 1/3 in the upper part of the hold.

7.13.3 6 changes of air per hour must be assured.

7.13.4 On container ships carrying closed freight and tank containers ventilation may be reduced to two air changes per hour. (see SOLAS 1974, Chapter II-2, Reg. 19)

Where transport is restricted exclusively to closed freight containers with goods of classes 4 and 5.1, natural ventilation is sufficient.

7.13.5 For dangerous solid goods carried in bulk natural ventilation is sufficient except where mechanical ventilation is prescribed in the Code of Safe Practice for Solid Bulk Cargoes.

The use of portable fans is subject to the consent of Biro Klasifikasi Indonesia.

7.13.6 If it is intended to carry packaged dangerous goods of class³⁾, combustible gases of class 2 or goods of classes 3, 6.1 and 8 with flash points below 23° C, additionally the requirements mentioned in 7.13.8 -7.13.11 are to be observed.

7.13.7 Air outlets must be located at a safe distance of possible ignition sources. It is recommended to observe a spherical radius of 3 m.

7.13.8 The exhaust openings on deck are to be provided with permanently installed protective screens with mesh sizes not exceeding 13 mm.

7.13.9 The motors of electrically driven axial fans are to have explosion-proof enclosure appropriate to the characteristics of the cargo but corresponding at least to

³⁾ except for sub-class 1.4, compatibility group S.

II B type protection and temperature class T 4.4)

7.13.10 The ventilator design must comply with Section 1, 8.15.

7.13.11 For the transport of dangerous solid goods in bulk motors of electrically driven axial ventilators of explosion-protected design appropriate to the characteristics of the cargo are to be employed. In detail, the requirements are to be agreed with BKI.

7.14 Cargo holds tor refrigerated cargo containers

If a cargo hold is intended to exclusively carry refrigerated cargo containers with sets of air-cooled refrigerating machines, an adequate quantity of air is to be provided for compensating the condensation heat with maximum condenser output at a cargo hold temperature of 45° C. Proof of the quantity of air thus required and of the simultaneity factor is to be furnished to BKI by relevant computations.

8. Holds for the transport of motor vehicles with fuel in their tanks and holds of Ro-Ro Ships

8.1.1 Mechanical ventilation is to be provided (where possible, exhaust air).

8.1.2 The supply air may be conducted into the holds without mechanical means and generally from the top.

8.2 The ventilation systems must be independent of other installations.

8.3 The mechanical ventilators must be capable of being controlled from a position outside the ventilated hold.

8.4.1 Failure to achieve the necessary air change rate must be signalled in the wheelhouse. This function can be performed by running lights.

8.4.2 If inlets capable of being closed watertight are fitted, a limit switch has to switch off the ventilator motor, with the inlet being in closed condition.

8.5.1 The ventilating system must prevent dangerous accumulations or layers of gas forming in the holds and must ensure effective and thorough ventilation even in heavy weather.

8.5.2 In general, the exhaust trunks are to be arranged such as to reach down to the lowermost point of cargo holds.

8.5.3 2/3 of the volume of air are to be exhausted in the lower portion, 1/3 in the upper portion of the hold.

For goods of class 1. except for 1.4 S. at least explosion group II A. temperature class T 5. For goods of classes 2. 3.
6.1 and 8 it will have to be checked from case to case whether the explosion protection provided meets the respective explosion group and temperature class requirements.

8.5.4 The ventilation openings must not be covered by any structural elements of the ship or by cargo.

8.5.5 The air flow rate in the gratings should not exceed 10 m/s.

8.6.1 On board passenger vessels carrying more than 36 passengers the cargo holds are to be provided with a forced ventilation system designed for at least 10 changes of air per hour.

8.6.2 On board passenger vessels carrying not more than 36 passengers the cargo holds are to be provided with a forced ventilation system designed for at least 6 changes of air per hour.

8.6.3 On board passenger vessels special-category spaces are to be provided with a forced ventilation system designed for 10 changes of air per hour.

8.6.4 On board cargo vessels and ro-ro ships the cargo holds are to be provided with a forced ventilation system designed for at least 6 and/or 10 changes of air per hour, depending on the envisaged design of the electrical installation, see Rules for Electrical Installations, Volume IV, Section 16.

8.7 During loading and unloading periods an hourly air change rate greater than that specified in 8.6 is to be maintained.

8.8 The portions of air ducts for other rooms which are routed through the hold are to be gastight.

8.9 Tween-deck penetrations must have a coaming height of 380 mm.

8.10 Fire dampers must be capable of being closed quickly and efficiently under all sea conditions and in all weathers.

8.11 Air ducts are to be made of steel.

8.12 When installing electrical drives and equipment for ventilating systems, attention is to be paid to the protection zone 0.45 m above each enclosed deck on which motor vehicles are carried. In unfavorable circumstances, an accumulation of combustible or explosive gases and/or vapors is liable to occur in this zone.

If operational considerations render it necessary to install electrical equipment for ventilating systems within the protection zone, such equipment must have explosion-proof enclosure.

For details see the Rules for Electrical Installations, Volume IV, Section 16.

8.13 Electrical drives and equipment (e.g. fan motors) located in the exhaust airstream must have explosion-proof enclosure and conform, as a minimum requirement, to explosion group II A and temperature class T 3.

Section 2 - Biro Klasifikasi Indonesia

8.14 Air outlets must be located at a safe distance from possible sources of ignition.

These sources of ignition include the ventilator openings of rooms containing electrical equipment without explosion-proof enclosure.

8.15 The design of ventilators must conform to Section 1, 8.15.

8.16 The provisions stated in 8 also apply to other vehicles presenting a similar hazard.

9. Main and auxiliary engine rooms and boiler rooms

9.1 Mechanical ventilation is to be provided which is sufficient to ensure the reliable operation of the plant under all operating conditions and in all weathers (see Section 1, 6.6).

The required total amount of air is to be supplied to these spaces via openings which do not need watertight closures according to Reg, 19(3) or the LLC 1966.

9.2 The ventilating system of engine and boiler rooms may not be connected to the ventilating systems of other ship's rooms/spaces.

9.3 The air is to be conducted in such a way as to avoid local accumulations of heat wherever possible (e.g. by means of a secondary system of selective ventilation or by under-floor ducting or exhaust air).

9.4 The stream of supply air shall not be directed immediately towards hot machine parts, turbine components, measuring instruments or switchboards. Electrical machinery and installations (switch cabinets, etc.) are to be protected such that water particles having penetrated into the air ducts will not cause disturbances. Risks of this kind are to be minimized by appropriate duct and air outlet arrangement.

9.5 In the vicinity of switchgear and essential electrical machinery (generators, electrical propulsion units), air ducts are to be routed in such a way that possible leakages cannot jeopardize the electrical equipment.

9.6 The ventilating system is to be so installed that no gases can accumulate even below deck between the deck beams.

9.7 The ventilating system must be sufficient to prevent the accumulation of oil vapours under normal operating conditions.

9.8 Engine room ventilator openings in the vicinity of the navigating bridge are to be designed to avoid as far as possible any adverse effects on the operation of the ship due to suction and mechanical noise.

9.9 The number of engine room ventilator openings shall be kept to a minimum.

9.10 Mechanical engine room ventilators are to be provided with two switching point, one of which must be located at a central point outside the engine room.

The switching point outside the engine room must be electrically separated from the switching points of other ventilators.

9.11 The power supply to the engine room ventilators must be designed to prevent a total loss of engine room ventilation when non-essential consumers are disconnected due to overloading of the generator.

9.12 The exhaust air of air-cooled motors shall not cause any inadmissible permanent temperature rise in the spaces in which they are installed. If necessary, special exhaust ducts are to be fitted.

9.13 Where individual engine rooms have separate arrangements for flooding with CO₂, the ventilating system must also be separate.

9.14 It is to be ensured by an appropriate ventilating system that following flooding of the engine room with CO_2 the operating room has definitely been freed from gas.

9.15 In engine and boiler rooms, the air flow is to be calculated by reference to the heat dissipated by all the equipment installed in the space.

For determination of the volume of air, DIN ISO 8861 defines the design criteria and computation methods to be applied for ventilation of engine rooms aboard seagoing merchant vessels propelled by diesel engines.

The mean air temperature in the room shall not exceed the outside temperature by more than 15° C (see 9.19).

9.16 All air balance openings (such as skylights, funnel openings, etc.) must be provided with means of closure from outside.

9.17 Control points for funnel flaps and fire dampers are to be provided on deck outside the engine rooms. These points must continue to be accessible in the event of a fire in the ventilated space.

9.18 The ventilating system serving the space containing the power source for the emergency fire pump must be sufficient to keep this space free from smoke in the event of a fire in the engine room (see 18).

10 to 15 changes of air per hour should be attained.

9.19 Electrical installations, equipment and cables are generally designed for an ambient temperature of 45° C. Care is to be taken to ensure that, wherever possible, this temperature is not exceeded in any part of the engine room (see 9.15).

9.20 Enclosed cable ducts for power circuits, especially for electrical propeller drives, are to be provided with selective mechanical ventilation.

9.21 Switchboards, current converters, switch gear cabinets, etc. are to be ventilated from the bottom upwards.

10. Electrical machines

10.1 Cooling air taken from the engine room for electrical machines with forced ventilation shall, as far as possible, be free from oil vapour, dust and liquid particles.

10.2 Exhaust air expelled into the engine room shall not short-circuit the air flow, thereby causing these machines to overheat.

10.3 The air supply and exhaust system must ensure satisfactory operation even in heavy weather

10.4 Where, in enclosed ventilated machines, filters are mounted in the forced ventilation circuit of electrical machines, temperature detectors are to be fitted which trip an alarm in the event of an excessive rise in the winding temperature.

10.5 Where electrical machines are provided with forced-draught ventilation (supplied by their own mechanical fans), the failure of the latter shall trip an alarm.

Where machines are fitted with air ducts leading to the upper deck, the motors driving these fans must be provided with an emergency disconnecting switch outside the engine room.

10.6 If air is supplied directly from the upper deck to switchboards or important electrical machines (e.g. electrical propulsion units), moisture traps are to be fitted in order, as far as possible, to remove the liquid particles entrained in the air .

10.7 Where ducts have, unavoidably, to be routed over electrical equipment items, they are to be fitted with drip pans with means of drainage.

11. CO_2 Rooms

11.1 Rooms for CO_2 bottles must be adequately ventilated.

11.2 CO_2 bottle rooms located below the exposed deck are to be provided with mechanical ventilation capable of effecting 15 changes of air per hour (i.e., where the CO_2 cannot escape into the open air through existing apertures).

11.3 No other rooms/spaces may be connected to this exhaust ventilation.

11.4 Air ducts routed through the accommodation area must be gastight.

11.5 The exhaust air may only be expelled into the open atmosphere.

12. Refrigerating machinery rooms

12.1 Refrigerating machinery rooms must be equipped with an effective and suitably arranged ventilation system.

In the case of refrigerants, the gases of which are heavier than air (group 1), the exhaust -air openings are to be arranged directly above the floor of the room; in the

case of refrigerants, the gases of which are lighter than air (groups 2 and 3), they are to be arranged at the ceilings of the rooms.

12.2 Except for supply ducts, in the case of group 1 refrigerants, there shall be no connection whatever with ventilating systems serving other ship's rooms/spaces.

If group 1 refrigerant are employed, the supply ducts may not be connected to the ventilating systems of accommodation spaces.

12.3 Refrigerating machinery rooms using group 1 refrigerants must be equipped with mechanical ventilation capable of effecting at least 30 changes of air per hour .

If a refrigerant condenser is installed in a room, where other machinery and equipment are arranged (e.g., in engine rooms, ventilator rooms, etc.), the requirement for 30 air changes per hour will be waived, if following a leakage the level of the total refrigerant charge will in the form of superheated steam not exceed 200 mm above the floor (for R 22 with a superheating temperature of + 25° C room temperature and a pressure or 1,03 bar, the specific volume is 0,278 m³/kg, and for R 12, the specific volume is 0,193 m³/kg)

12.4 The minimum flow rate of mechanical ventilating systems for refrigerating machine rooms with group 2 refrigerants is to be determined by applying the formula

$$V = 60 . \sqrt[3]{m^2}$$

where:

 $V(m^3/h) = flow rate$

m (kg) = weight of refrigerant charge in system

The number of hourly air changes shall not, however, be less than 40.

12.5 In the case of ammonia systems where the refrigerating machine room is equipped with an effective water sprinkler system, the minimum flow rate of mechanical ventilating systems in accordance with 12.4 may be reduced by 20 %.

12.6 In machinery rooms, in which non-approved group 3 refrigerants (e.g., hydrocarbons, such as ethane, ethylene) are condensed in cargo reliquefaction plants, the procedure outlined in 12.4 and 12.5 is to be applied.

Special requirements on account of toxicity limits, degree of causticity and explosion limits, are to be agreed with BKI.

12.7 The ventilators required as per 12.4 are to be provided in insulated refrigerating machine rooms as well. However, they are to be switched on only, if these rooms are entered.

12.8 Means must also be provided for switching on and off the mechanical ventilators of refrigerating machinery rooms from outside these rooms. The switches are to be clearly marked .

12.9 The exhaust air trunks of refrigerating machinery room ventilators inside the ship arc to be made gastight. The exhaust air ducting must prevent gas penetrating into other ship's rooms/spaces.

13. Battery rooms

13.1 All battery rooms, cabinets and boxes. must be ventilated in such a way that an accumulation of ignitable gas mixtures is as far as possible avoided.

13.2 The ventilation inlets and outlets are to be so arranged that fresh air flows over the entire storage battery.

13.3 Devices which hinder the free passage of air, e.g. flame arresters and safety screens, shall not to be mounted in the ventilation inlet and outlet ducts of battery rooms.

13.4 Where storage batteries are operated only in parallel or switch over operation with the network, battery rooms, containers and cupboards may be naturally ventilated, provided that the charging power does not exceed

- 3 kW for lead acid storage batteries, or

2 kW for nickel cadmium storage batteries

even under boost charging conditions.

If this charging power is exceeded, forced ventilation has to be provided.

13.5 The quantity of air to be removed shall be at least :

Q = 0,11.1.n

where :

Q quantity of air removed in m³/h

I the current according to the charger characteristic, but at least 1/4 of the maximum charger current.

n number of battery cells

13.6 If only batteries with sealed cells and internal oxygen consumption are used, the exhaust quantity of air may be reduced to :

$$Q = 0,03.1.n$$

13.7 With natural ventilation, the requirements of 13.5 are fulfilled if the design of the ducts conforms to the following table, assuming an air speed of 0,5 meter/second.

The inclination of air ducts should not exceed 45 ° from vertical.

13.8 Wherever possible, for forced ventilation abstract fans should be used. The fan motors must be either explosion proof and resistant to electrolyte or, preferably, located outside of the endangered area.

13.9 Where storage batteries are charged automatically, with automatic start of the fan at the beginning of the charging, arrangements must be made for the ventilation to continue for at least 1 hour after completion of charging.

Charging power P [W]	Ventilation duct cross section [cm²]		
	lead acid batteries	nickel cadmium batteries	
< 1000	80	120	
1000 < 1500	120	180	
1500 < 2000	160	240	
2000 ≤ 3000	240 forced ventilation		
> 3000	forced ventilation		

Cross sections of ventilation ducts

Section 3

Additional Regulations for Tankers

1. General rules

1.1 For the gas-freeing of tanks, cofferdams, pipe tunnels etc. see the Rules for Machinery Installations, Volume III, Section 15.

1.2 Portable fans (not electrically driven) must be capable of being bonded electrically to the hull before being put into operation.

1.3 Where air ducts are located in areas deemed to be affected if the ship should suffer damage, measures are to be taken to prevent the flooding of other, undamaged compartments.

1.4 The heights of ventilator coamings must extend upwards above the most unfavourable leakage water level.

1.5 Ventilation openings (inlets and outlets to the open deck) leading to accommodation, service and machinery spaces, engine rooms and control stations shall not face the cargo area. They are to be located either in the end bulkhead not facing the cargo area or in the side walls. The distance from the end of the superstructure or house facing the cargo area shall be at least L/25 subject to a minimum of 3 m. The distance need not exceed 5 m.

The end of the house is deemed to be the end bulkhead on the level concerned.

1.6 1.5 applies analogously in the case of bow or stern cargo handling facilities.

1.7 Main ventilation intake and exhaust openings are to be located above the first deck above the cargo deck.

1.8 Ventilator coamings of rooms below the freeboard deck are to be made especially robust or are to be effectively protected by superstructures or other means.

1.9 Para 2, 3 and 4 contain additional regulations and/or regulations deviating from the general rules as applicable to oil tankers, oil recovery ships, liquefied gas and chemical tankers.

1.10 Cargo and ballast pump rooms in the cargo area

1.10.1 Pump rooms are to be provided with efficient means of ventilation. These systems are not to be connected to the ventilation systems of other spaces in the ship.

3-2 Section 3 - Biro Klasifikasi Indonesia

1.10.2 Pump rooms are to be ventilated by mechanically driven exhaust fans.

The exhaust duct is to be so installed that its suction opening is close to the bottom of the pump room. An emergency suction opening is to be located about 2 m above the pump room floor. This opening is to be fitted with a means of closing which can also be operated from the main deck.

The emergency opening is to be of sufficient size to enable at least 3/4 of the necessary volume of exhaust air to be exhausted with the bottom opening closed.

1.10.3 Inlet openings of supply ventilators are to be located in a sufficient height above deck and in such a way that re-intake of hazardous gas/air mixtures is avoided.

1.10.4 The supply air openings are to be arranged at the top of the room.

1.11 Pipe tunnels in the cargo area

1.11.1 The rules set out under para 2, 3 or 4 governing spaces which are, or are not, entered during cargo handling are applicable.

1.11.2 Pipe tunnels with openings into the pump room area to be treated as pump rooms.

1.12 Separate inert gas spaces

1.12.1 Inert gas spaces must not be provided with ventilation openings leading to accommodation spaces, service spaces and control stations.

1.12.2 Air inlet openings are to be located in the end bulkhead not facing the cargo area. Alternatively they may be arranged in a side wall. The distance from the front bulkhead shall be L/25 subject to a minimum of 5 m.

1.12.3 In rooms, in which burner systems are installed, supply ventilating systems are to be provided.

2. Oil tankers (flash points of cargo $\leq 60^{\circ}$ C)

2.1 Ventilation openings into closed spaces containing sources of ignition are to be located at a horizontal distance of at least 10 m from the cargo tank vent outlets used in cargo handling operations.

2.2 Ventilation openings into enclosed spaces containing sources of ignition are to be located at a horizontal distance of at least 5 m from the cargo tank vent outlets for small quantities of gas (breather valves).

2.3 On bulk carriers/oil tankers, portable or fixed mechanical ventilators are to be provided for cargo holds and the adjacent spaces.

2.4 Spaces in the cargo area required to be entered during normal cargo handling operations.

2.4.1 Cargo pump rooms and other enclosed spaces which contain cargo handling equipment and similar spaces in which cargo handling operations are performed shall be fitted with an independent mechanical ventilation system capable of being controlled from a point outside the spaces concerned.

2.4.2 Provision is to be made to ventilate such spaces prior to entering the compartment and operating the equipment.

A warning notice must be mounted outside the room to the effect that the ventilation system is to be switched on prior to entry.

2.4.3 Mechanical ventilation inlets and outlets shall be arranged to ensure sufficient air movement through the space to avoid the accumulation of flammable or toxic vapours and to ensure a safe working environment, but in no case shall the ventilation system have a capacity of less than 20 changes of air per hour based upon the total volume of the space.

2.4.4 Ventilation systems must be permanently installed.

2.4.5 Cargo pump rooms are to be equipped with mechanical exhaust ventilators. The air supply is to be at the top of the pump room. The exhaust duct is to extend downwards to within a short distance of the pump room floor.

An emergency opening is to be provided approximately 2 m above the floor. The opening is to be fitted with a cover which can also be operated from the main deck.

The size of the emergency opening shall be such that at least 3/4 of the required exhaust air flow can be expelled with the bottom opening closed.

2.4.6 Ventilation <u>exhaust</u> ducts from spaces within the cargo area are to discharge upwards in locations at least 3 m in the horizontal direction from ventilation intakes and openings to accommodation, service and machinery spaces and control stations and other spaces outside the cargo area.

The height of ventilation outlets is not to be less than 3 m above the weatherdeck or 2 m above the fore-and-aft gangway (if any), if fitted within 3 m of the gangway.

2.4.7 Ventilation <u>intake</u> openings are to be arranged above the hazardous area such as to minimize the probability of re-intake of hazardous vapours from any ventilation discharge openings.

They are to be fitted at a minimum horizontal distance of 3 m from air intake openings and (other) openings to accommodation, service and machinery spaces, control stations and other spaces outside the cargo area.

Air intake openings must be arranged at a minimum height of 3 m above the weatherdeck.

2.4.8 Openings in air ducts on deck must be fitted with protective screens of corrosion-resistant metal mesh (see Section1, 8.15.1).

2.4.9 Electrically powered ventilators may be driven only by motors with explosion-proof enclosure corresponding at least to explosion group II B and temperature class T3 (depending on where they are installed).

The motors are to be located outside the air stream and outside such spaces.

2.4.10 For the design and construction of ventilators, see Section 1, 8.15.

2.5 Spaces in the cargo area not normally entered.

2.5.1 Cargo tanks, cargo holds, voids, cofferdams, spaces containing cargo pipelines and other spaces in which gases or cargo can accumulate must be provided with means of ventilation to create a safe atmosphere, should it be necessary to enter these spaces. If these spaces are not provided with a permanent ventilation system, approved portable ventilators are required.

2.5.2 Where ventilators are connected to the cargo piping system for gas-freeing the tanks, measures must be taken, e.g. by removal of parts of the air duct or by the use of spectacle flanges, to ensure that, when the ventilation is switched off, neither cargo nor vapours can penetrate into the ventilators.

This also applies to cargo with flash points exceeding 60° C.

2.5.3 Electrically powered ventilators may be driven only by motors with explosion-proof enclosure corresponding at least to explosion group II B and temperature class T 3 (depending on where they are installed).

The motors are to be located outside the air stream and outside such spaces.

2.5.4 For the design and construction of motor-driven fans, see Section1, 8.15.

2.5.5 The ventilation system design shall be compatible with the size of the tanks or spaces. A value of 8 changes of air per hour may be taken as a reference.

2.5.6 In the case of permanently installed ventilation systems, mechanical exhaust ventilators are to be provided, except for spaces of zone 0 (see. 2.6.6), which are required to be supply ventilated.

2.5.7 In the case of permanently installed ventilation systems, it must be possible to extract exhaust air from the lower as well as the upper portion of the space.

2.6 Oil recovery vessels and ships suitable for navigating in oil-covered waters (for oil with a flash point $\leq 60^{\circ}$ C)

2.6.1 The ventilation openings (inlets and outlets) leading to non-dangerous areas, such as accommodation, service and machinery spaces, control station rooms and to the bridge, which are used during oil recovery operations and/or not closed gastight are to be located at least 6 m above the waterline and are at any rate to be arranged outside dangerous areas.

2.6.2 Spaces with entrances and openings into hazardous zones in zone 2 which are normally used during oil recovery operations must be mechanically ventilated from outside the hazardous zones.

Provision is to be made for at least 6 changes of air per hour .

If the equipment in these spaces is not provided with zone 2 type protection, ventilation in accordance with 2.6.3 is to be installed.¹

2.6.3 Spaces with entrances and openings into hazardous zones (see 2.6.6) in zone 1 which are normally used during oil recovery operations must be mechanically ventilated from outside the hazardous zones and must be kept at overpressure. The overpressure in these spaces should be approximately 0,5 -1 mbar and is to be monitored.

2.6.4 Spaces in zones 0 and 1 which are not normally used during oil recovery operations are not to be ventilated from hazardous zones 0 and 1 even if their equipment is provided with the corresponding explosion protection.

Spaces which must be accessible at all times for safety reasons, such as the steering gear compartment for example, are to be equipped with a ventilation system of the extraction type ensuring at least 6 changes of air per hour.

2.6.5 Air locks are to be kept at overpressure, see 3.4.

2.6.6 Hazardous zones

For the purposes of the present Section hazardous zones are zones in which flammable or explosive gases or vapours are liable to accumulate in dangerous concentration.

Hazardous zones are divided into zones 0, 1 and 2 as per IEC 79-10, according to the likelihood of a dangerous explosive atmosphere occurring there.

1) See Regulations for the Construction of Oil Recovery Ships.

Section 3 - Biro Klasifikasi Indonesia

Locations comparable with zone 0:

3-6

- Cargo tanks for the storage of oil and the insides of pipelines and vessels belonging to the cargo tank system.
- Spaces extending to a height of 1 m above the oil-covered surface of the water or the deepest load waterline.

Locations comparable with zone 1:

- Cofferdams and other spaces adjoining cargo tanks.
- Cargo pump rooms
- Enclosed or semi-enclosed spaces directly above cargo tanks or with walls in line with cargo tank bulkheads.
- Stowage spaces for cargo hoses and oil recovery equipment (oil skimmers).
- Spaces on the open deck, including semi-enclosed spaces within a spherical radius of 3 m of tank openings and openings to pump rooms or cofferdams (e.g. cargo tank hatches, inspection holes, ventilation openings, access openings).
- The open deck over the full breadth and length of the ship up to a height of 2.4 m above the uppermost continuous deck.
- Spaces without overpressure ventilation which can be entered directly (without air lock) from a zone or which have openings to this zone.
- Enclosed or semi-enclosed spaces containing pipelines belonging to the cargo tank system.

Locations comparable with zone 2:

- Spaces above the hazardous zone 1 over the full breadth and length of the ship to a height of 6 m above the deepest load waterline.
- Spaces without overpressure ventilation which can be entered directly (without air lock) from zone 2 or which have openings to this zone.

2.7 Oil tankers using cargo as fuel

2.7.1 See Rules for Machinery Installations, Volume III, Section 15. D.

3. Liquefied gas tankers (see Rules for Ship Carrying Liquefied Gases in Bulk, Volume IX, Section 12)

3.1 Ventilation openings to accommodation and service spaces and control station rooms must be fitted with gastight means of closure which can be operated from inside the ventilated spaces, if toxic gases are to be carried.

This requirement applies to radio rooms and main navigating rooms, cabins, messes, toilets, hospitals, galleys, etc., but not to engine room casings, store rooms on deck, steering gear rooms, workshops, etc. The requirement does likewise not apply to store rooms in the forecastle and loading control spaces within the cargo area.

Any closures required, which have to be operated from inside, are to be arranged at air intake and outlet openings. The closures have to be adequately gastight. Simple steel fire dampers without sealings are not sufficient.

3.2 Where a cargo control room is situated in the area of accommodation and service spaces, and control rooms, 3.6 is applicable.

3.3 The ventilation openings for gasfree spaces are to be located in gasfree zones.

3.4 Air locks

3.4.1 Air locks are to be mechanically ventilated from a gasfree zone.

3.4.2 An overpressure of approx. 5 -10 mm water column (0,5 -1,0 hPa) is to be maintained to the area of exposed weather deck with a gas hazard.

3.4.3 This ventilation system may be connected to that of other gasfree spaces.

3.5 Bow or stern cargo handling arrangements

3.5.1 The ventilation openings (inlets and outlets to the exposed deck) leading to accommodation, service and machinery spaces and control stations must not face the cargo shore connection of bow or stern loading and unloading arrangements. They have to be located on the outboard side of the superstructure or deckhouse at a minimum distance of L/25 but at least at a distance of 3 m from the end of the superstructure or deckhouse facing the cargo shore connection location of the bow or stern .cargo handling equipment. This distance need, however, not exceed 5 m.

The end bulkhead at each level is regarded as end of the deckhouse.

Beyond this, during operation of the bow or stern cargo handling arrangements all shutters in the respective superstructure or deckhouse side walls have to be kept closed.

Where in smaller ships the above requirements and in addition those of para 1.5 cannot be met, relaxations may be granted.

3.5.2 During operation of the bow or stern cargo handling facilities the ventilation openings leading to spaces within 10 m of the pipe connection shall be kept closed.

3.6 The ventilation openings leading to accommodation and service spaces, control stations and other gasfree spaces are to be located at a minimum distance equivalent to B (the breadth of the ship) or 25 m, whichever is the lesser value, from the nearest exit of a cargo tank safety valve.

Smaller distances may be permitted for ships less than 90 m long.

A distance of 10 m is to be maintained from all other vent outlets connected to the cargo tank system.

The distances are to be measured in a straight line.

3.7 Where enclosed spaces with a gas hazard contain permanently installed equipment for inerting or smothering a fire, closing of the ventilation shutters shall be accompanied by a warning signal inside the space so that, in an emergency, the crew can quit the space in good time.

3.8 Spaces in the cargo area required to be entered during normal cargo handling operations.

3.8.1 Electric motor rooms, cargo compressor and pump rooms, other enclosed spaces which contain cargo handling equipment and similar spaces in which cargo handling operations are performed shall be fitted with independent mechanical ventilation systems capable of being controlled from outside such spaces.

3.8.2 Provision is to be made to ventilate such spaces prior to entering the compartment and operating the equipment.

A warning notice requiring the use of such ventilation prior to entry is to be placed outside the compartment.

3.8.3 Mechanical ventilation inlets and outlets shall be arranged to ensure sufficient air movement through the space to avoid the accumulation of flammable or toxic vapours and to ensure a safe working environment, but in no case shall the ventilation system have a capacity of less than 30 changes of air per hour based upon the total volume of the space.

As an exception, gasfree cargo control rooms may have 8 changes of air per hour .

3.8.4 Ventilation systems are to be permanent and if of the exhaust type, permit extraction from either or both upper and lower parts of the spaces, depending on the density of the vapours of the products carried.

3.8.5 In rooms housing electric motors driving cargo compressors or pumps, spaces except machinery spaces containing inert gas generators, cargo control rooms if considered as gasfree spaces and other gasfree spaces within the cargo area, the ventilation has to be of the positive pressure type.

The overpressure is to be monitored.

The following means of monitoring overpressure in spaces protected by air-locks are considered acceptable alternatives to differential pressure sensing devices:

- monitoring of current or power in the electrical supply to the ventilation motors; or
- air flow sensors in the ventilation ducts.

(see Rules for Ship Carrying Liquefied Gases in Bulk, Volume IX, 3.6 -0.1.)

3.8.6 In cargo compressor and pump rooms and in gas-dangerous cargo control rooms the ventilation is to be of exhaust type.

3.8.7 The <u>exhaust</u> ducts must vent upwards from discharge points located at a horizontal distance of at least 10 m from the air intake and (other) openings leading to accommodation and service spaces, control stations and other gasfree spaces.

The height of ventilation outlets is not to be less than 3 m above the weatherdeck or 2 m above the fore-and-aft gangway (if any), if fitted within 3 m of the gangway.

3.8.8 Gas-dangerous spaces for the purpose of this para. are spaces mentioned in 3.8.6. For other spaces, which are "gas-dangerous spaces" only due to their position, relaxations may be granted.

3.8.9 Ventilation <u>intakes</u> are to be arranged above the gas-dangerous zone so as to minimize the possibility of recycling hazardous vapours from any ventilation discharge opening.

They are to be situated at a distance of at least 3 m in the horizontal direction from ventilation intakes and (other) openings to accommodation, service and machinery spaces, control stations and other spaces outside the cargo area.

The height of ventilation intakes is not to be less than 3 m above the weatherdeck.

3.8.10 Ventilation ducts from gas-dangerous spaces are not to be led through accommodation, service and machinery spaces or control stations.

3.8.11 Electric motors driving fans are to be placed outside the ventilation ducts if the carriage of flammable products is intended. Ventilation fans shall not produce a source of vapour ignition in either the ventilated space or the ventilation system associated with the space:

Their enclosure must, as a minimum requirement, conform to explosion group II B and temperature class T 3.

For gas-dangerous spaces the design of ventilators must conform to Section 1, 8.15.

3-10 Section 3 - Biro Klasifikasi Indonesia

3.9 Spaces in the cargo area not normally entered

3.9.1 Hold spaces, interbarrier spaces, void spaces, cofferdams, spaces containing cargo piping and other spaces where cargo vapours may accumulate, shall be capable of being ventilated to ensure a safe environment when entry into the spaces is necessary.

3.9.2 Where a permanent ventilation system is not provided for such spaces, approved means of portable mechanical ventilation is to be provided.

3.9.3 Where necessary owing to the arrangement of spaces (such as hold spaces and interbarrier spaces), essential ducting for such ventilation shall be permanently installed.

3.9.4 If fixed or portable ventilation ducting is arranged, defined distances from the vessel's structural elements to be surveyed or from insulations have to be maintained (see Rules for Ship Carrying Liquefied Gases in Bulk, Volume IX, Section 3.5-0.2.1 to .4).

3.9.5 Fans are to be clear of personnel access openings, and are to comply with Section 1, 8.15.

For electrically driven ventilators use may only be made of explosion-proof motors with enclosure

corresponding, as a minimum requirement, to explosion group II B and temperature class T3 (depending on where they are installed).

The motors are to be located outside the airstream and outside these spaces.

3.9.6 Provision is to be made for at least 8 air changes per hour.

In special cases a smaller number or air changes is admissible for cargo spaces surrounding an independent tank.

3.9.7 A dry air generation plant (inert gas system) may also be used for ventilation purposes, provided the plant is equipped with an appropriate system.

3.10 Liquefied gas tankers using cargo as fuel

See Rules for Ship Carrying Liquefied Gases in Bulk, Volume IX, Section 16.

4. Chemical tankers (see BKI Rules for Ships Carrying Dangerous Chemical in Bulk, Volume X, Section 12)

4.1.1 Particular attention is to be paid to the arrangement of ventilation openings (inlets and outlets to the exposed deck), taking into account cargo and tank venting pipings.

4.1.2 The minimum distance from the nearest tank vent must be 10 m.

4.1.3 Where toxic cargo is carried this distance must be 15 m.

4.1.4 Where it is intended to carry oil cargo, this distance is to be measured in the horizontal direction.

4.2 Bow or stern cargo handling arrangements

4.2.1 The ventilation openings (inlets and outlets to the exposed deck) leading to accommodation, service and machinery spaces and control stations must not face the cargo shore connection location of bow or stern cargo handling equipment. They have to be located on the outboard side of the superstructure or deckhouse at a minimum distance of L/25 and at least at a distance of 3 m from the end of the superstructure or deckhouse facing the cargo shore connection location of the bow or stern cargo handling equipment. This distance need, however, not exceed 5 m.

The end bulkhead at each level is regarded as end of the deckhouse.

Beyond this, during operation of the bow or stern cargo handling facilities all shutters in the respective superstructure or deckhouse side walls have to be kept closed.

Where in smaller ships the above requirements and those of para 1.5 cannot be observed, relaxations may be granted.

4.2.2 During operation of the bow or stem cargo handling facilities the ventilation openings leading to spaces within 10 m of the pipe connection shall be kept closed.

4.3 Spaces in cargo area normally entered during cargo handling operations

4.3.1 Cargo pump rooms and other enclosed spaces which contain cargo handling equipment and similar spaces in which work is performed on the cargo are to be fitted with mechanical ventilation systems capable of being controlled from outside such spaces.

4.3.2 Provision is to be made to ventilate such spaces prior to entering the compartment and operating the equipment.

4.3.3 A warning notice requiring the use of such ventilation is to be placed outside the compartment.

4.3.4 Mechanical ventilation inlets and outlets are to be arranged to ensure sufficient air movement through the space to avoid the accumulation of toxic or flammable vapours (taking into account their vapour densities) and to ensure sufficient oxygen to provide a safe working environment.

In no case is the ventilation system to have a capacity of less than 30 changes of air per hour, based upon the total volume of the space.

For certain products increased ventilation rates for cargo pump rooms are prescribed (see 4.3.12).

4.3.5 Ventilating systems must be permanently installed.

4.3.6 Mechanical exhaust ventilation in accordance with 2.4.5 is to be provided. Extraction from approximately 2 m above and below the floor plates is to be possible.

4.3.7 Ventilation <u>exhaust</u> ducts from spaces within the cargo area are to discharge upwards in locations at least 10 m in the horizontal direction from ventilation intakes and openings to accommodation, service and machinery spaces and control stations and other spaces outside the cargo area.

The height of ventilation outlets is not to be less than 3 m above the weatherdeck or 2 m above the fore-and-aft gangway (if any), if fitted within 3 m of the gangway.

For certain products increased heights may be prescribed.

4.3.8 Ventilation <u>intakes</u> are to be arranged above the hazardous area such as to minimize the possibility of recycling hazardous vapours from any ventilation discharge opening.

They are to be fitted at a distance of at least 3 m in the horizontal direction from ventilation intakes and (other) openings to accommodation, service and machinery spaces, control stations and other spaces outside the cargo area.

The height of ventilation intakes is not to be less than 3 m above the weatherdeck.

4.3.9 Ventilation ducts from spaces within the cargo area are not to be led through machinery, accommodation and service spaces, control stations or other similar spaces.

4.3.10 Electric motors driving fans are to be placed outside the ventilation ducts, if the carriage of flammable products is intended.

The type of protection must be compatible with the characteristics of the cargo, but shall conform, as a minimum requirement, to explosion group II B and temperature class T4.

For spaces with a gas hazard the design of ventilators must conform to Section 1, 8.15.

4.3.11 Certain cargoes (e.g. phosphorus and sulphur) may require additional requirements to be imposed.

4.3.12.1 Where toxic substances are carried, the number of air changes for cargo pump rooms has to be increased to 45 per hour.

4.3.12.2 The exhaust vents must then be situated at least 10 m away from accommodation spaces, working areas or similar rooms as well as from the intakes of other ventilation systems.

The height of ventilation outlets is not to be less than 4 m above the weatherdeck or 2 m above the fore-and-aft gangway (if any), if fitted within 4 m of the gangway.

4.3.13 In all special cases, the Rules for Ships Carrying Dangerous Chemical in Bulk, Volume X Construction Rules, Section 15, are to be complied with.

4.3.14 Where flammable cargo with a flash point of 60 °C or below is carried, compliance with the regulations for oil tankers is additionally required.

4.4 Spaces in the cargo area normally entered

4.4.1 Ballast pump rooms and other enclosed spaces in the cargo area not covered by 4.3.1 are subject to 4.3.2 to 4.3.10, except that 20 air changes per hour are required and the horizontal distance as per 4.3.7 is to be not less than 3 m only.

4.5 Spaces in the cargo area not normally entered

4.5.1 Double bottoms, cofferdams, duct keels, pipe tunnels, spaces for cargo tanks and other spaces, where cargo or cargo vapours may accumulate, are to be capable of being ventilated to ensure a safe environment when entry into the spaces is necessary.

4.5.2 Where a permanent ventilation system is not provided for such spaces, approved means of portable mechanical ventilation are to be provided.

4.5.3 Where necessary owing to the arrangement of spaces (e.g. cargo holds), essential ducting for such ventilation is to be permanently installed.

4.5.4 Fans are to be clear of personnel access openings and are to comply with Section 1, 8.15.

For electrically driven fans only explosion-proof motors located outside the airstream and compatible with the characteristics of the cargo are permitted; however, they should at least be of explosion group II B and temperature class T 4.

4.5.5 Provision is to be made for at least 8 air changes per hour. For portable ventilators without ducting at least 16 changes of air per hour are required.

4.6 Chemical incinerator ships

4.6.1 The rules set out in 1. and in 4.1 to 4.9 are also to be observed, as far as applicable and in line with the additions or amendments in these paragraphs.

4.6.2 The ventilating systems of cargo pump rooms are subject to the provisions of 4.3.12.

3-14

4.6.3 If accommodations, service spaces, control spaces and machinery spaces not coming under category A are arranged forward of the cargo area, para 1.5 applies analogously, i.e. the distances indicated are to be measured from the aft end of the deckhouse arranged forward of the cargo area.

4.6.4 The effects of the combustion gases upon air inlets and outlets are to be taken into account.

4.6.5.1 Spaces housing incineration furnaces are to be equipped with permanently installed supply ventilation systems. These may not be connected to the ventilating systems of other spaces in the ship.

4.6.5.2 A permanent overpressure must be maintained in relation to the furnace combustion chamber.

4.6.5.3 At least 45 air changes per hour are required.

4.6.5.4 During maintenance work on the burners, adequate ventilation must be provided in this area as well.

4.6.5.5 Special safety measures must be taken if non-explosion-proof electrical equipment is used.

Interlocks are to be provided between fans and the switch gear of such equipment to ensure adequate ventilation before the equipment is put into operation (see Rules for Ships Carrying Dangerous Chemical in Bulk, Volume X, Section 19.9.2).

4.6.6.1 Spaces housing the ventilators supplying the combustion air are to be provided with permanently installed air intakes.

4.6.6.2 These may not be connected to the ventilating systems of other spaces in the ship.

4.6.6.3 At least 20 air changes per hour are required.

4.6.6.4 The air pressure always has to be exceed the pressure inside the furnace.

Section 4

Additional Regulations for Passenger Ships

1. Additional regulations for passenger ships of all sizes

1.1 Construction

1.1.1 Watertight bulkheads below the bulkhead deck may not be penetrated by air ducts.

Where (in exceptional cases) this cannot be avoided, ventilation openings are admissible on one side of the bulkhead only. On the other side of the bulkhead the ventilation duct is to be without openings and of watertight and thick-walled design.

It must not be arranged within the "area susceptible to damages" as per the damage stability calculation.

Where air ducts are arranged such as to penetrate more than one watertight bulkhead, a power-driven locking device is to be provided at the bulkheads, capable of being closed from a central position above the bulkhead deck. Here, too, ventilation openings are admissible in one compartment only.

1.1.2 The ducts leading to the various spaces must generally be located within the same vertical main fire zone.

1.1.3 Air ducts of all sizes which exceptionally penetrate boundaries (bulkheads/decks) of the vertical main fire zones are to be fitted with automatically closing fire dampers as per Section 1, 7.2.

1.1.4 The duct between the damper and the partition must be made of steel and is to be insulated in conformity with the partition.

1.1.5 The plate thickness of this duct is to be not less than 3 to 5 mm (see Section 1, 8.10b).

1.1.6 Automatic fire dampers are also required where the ducts are routed, with insulation and without openings, through the adjoining main fire zone.

1.1.7 1.1.6 does not apply to air trunks, ducts and pipes which insulated in conformity with the room/space groups lead through horizontal main fire zones without openings (e.g. ro-ro decks) and to very short insulated duct bends which lead through the adjoining vertical main fire zone without openings.

Biro Klasifikasi Indonesia

1.2 Carriage of motor vehicles

Beyond the areas mentioned in Section 2, 8.12, in enclosed special spaces (i.e. in ro-ro spaces on board passenger vessels) for the carriage of motor vehicles underneath the bulkhead deck and in cargo holds for motor vehicles carrying fuel in their tanks the entire cargo hold area is a protected area required electrical equipment of explosion-protected type.

For details see Rules for Electrical Installations, Volume IV, Section 16.

1.3 Central control places

Central control places for funnel naps and fire-dampers of engine room ,ventilators are to be provided outside the engine rooms.

2. Additional regulations for passenger vessels carrying <u>more than 36</u> <u>passengers</u>

2.1 Construction

2.1.1 Where decks are penetrated by trunks or ducts, smoke dampers as per Section 1, 7.3 are to be fitted to isolate the various deck areas from each other. This also applies to separate ducting leading to the ventilator room, however, the damper may in this case be located in the ventilator room.

If there are no ventilation openings in a particular deck area, the damper may be dispensed with, provided that the portion of duct in the side area is insulated in conformity with the room/space groups concerned.

Vertical ducts are, as a matter of principle, to be insulated in conformity with the room/space groups.

2.1.2 Deviating from Section 1, 4.2, the following air ducts are to be made of steel or another equivalent material:

- Ducts with a cross-section of 0.075 m² and over;
- Vertical ducts of all sizes serving more than one deck.
- **2.1.3** 2.1.2 does not apply to ventilation ducts in cargo holds.

2.1.4 Means must be provided to enable all mechanically driven ventilators to be switched off from two switching points located as far as possible apart. (For engine room ventilators see Section 2, 9.7, for cargo hold ventilators Section 2, 8.8 and for control stations 2.2).

It must be possible to switch off <u>all</u> the ventilators from each of these switching points.

2.2 Control stations

The second control station ventilator need be capable of being switched on and off from only <u>one</u> location outside the ventilated room.

2.3 Stair cases

Ventilation ducts for stair cases are to he routed separately from the ventilator room and may not supply air to any other space.

2.4 Public spaces extending over three or more decks

2.4.1 Where public spaces extend over three or more decks and contain combustible materials, such as furniture, and include enclosed spaces, such as shops, offices and restaurants, an exhaust system with air balance for the discharge of smoke is to be provided.

2.4.2 The system shall he capable of being switched on by either the required smoke-detecting system or manually.

Once it has been switched on, it must not be possible to switch it off unintentionally from the positions referred to in 2.1.4 (separate labelled switch).

2.4.3 It is to be ensured that, when switching on the ventilators, the fire dampers pertaining to this system are open.

2.4.4 The ventilator capacity must be sufficient for extracting the space volume within a period of 10 minutes (6 air changes/hour).

2.4.5 Any existing exhaust-air system may be employed, taking into account. the requirements contained in 2.4.2 to 2.4.4.